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VISION
To be the water services provider of choice for all
stakeholders in the water value chain.

MISSION
To provide and expand affordable, sustainable, quality and
reliable water services to stakeholders, improve quality of
life and contribute to development.

CORE VALUES
ENTHUSIASM
We will treat people with respect, warmth, integrity, passion,
courtesy and enthusiasm to make them feel special.
HONESTY AND TRANSPARENCY
We will develop a culture of trustworthiness, transparency
and loyalty that responds to our customers and fellow
employees with honesty and passion.
EXCELLENCE
We will continue to stretch available resources so that
Mhlathuze Water will continue producing work of excellence.
FAIRNESS
We will maintain high ethical standards, and allocate and
share responsibilities in a fair and equitable manner.
ACCOUNTABILITY
We will make ourselves available to our customers and
remain accountable to all our stakeholders at all times.
CREATIVITY AND INNOVATION
We will continually strive for new, different and better ways
of doing what we do and always challenge the status quo,
mind-sets and assumptions.
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ORGANISATION AT A GLANCE
Mhlathuze Water is one of the leading water utilities in South Africa today, providing a world-class
service to its customers. The organisation’s commitment and focused direction in providing safe and
dependable water services is indicative in its consistent success. Based in KwaZulu-Natal, Mhlathuze
Water’s area of supply covers some 37,000km2 stretching from the uThukela River in the south and
up the east coast to the Mozambique and Swaziland borders, around Vryheid and back to the uThukela
River. Within this region, Mhlathuze Water has built and operates an inter-basin transfer scheme, a
major water treatment plant, an offshore waste water disposal pipeline, and manages water treatment
and sewerage plants on an agency basis for industry.

SERVICES
• Bulk Water Provision: Raw, Purified and Clarified Water
• Bulk Waste Water Disposal
• Scientific Services
• Water Resources Management
• Services to Water Services Authorities (WSA)
• Implementing Agent for Schools’ Sanitation Infrastructure, Water Infrastructure and
Working for Water Programme.

MANDATE
CONSTITUTION
The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa is the supreme law of the land. No other law or
government action can supersede the provisions of the Constitution. Section 27(1)(b) clearly states,
“Everyone has the right to have access to sufficient food and water.” (2) and, “The state must take
reasonable legislative and other measures, within its available resources, to achieve the progressive
realisation of each of these rights.”

WATER ACT
Mhlathuze Water is a statutory water ulitity that was established in terms of Section 176 of the Water
Act (Act No. 54 of 1956).

WATER SERVICES ACT
Mhlathuze Water is deemed to be a Water Board in terms of the Water Services Act (Act No. 108
of 1997) of South Africa.

PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT
Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by which State Owned Enterprises (SOE) are
directed, controlled and held to account. In addition, the legislative requirements based on a SOE’s
enabling legislation, corporate governance with regard to SOEs are applied through the precepts of
the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) (Act No. 1 of 1999) and run in tandem with the Protocol
on Corporate Governance, which encapsulates the principles contained in the King III Report on
Corporate Governance. In the PFMA schedule, Mhlathuze Water is listed as a Schedule 3(B) Public
entity of the national government state-owned enterprises.
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Note of Appreciation
to Stakeholders
The mandate of Mhlathuze Water, during the year
under review could not have been fulfilled without the
support, cooperation and contribution of the following
stakeholders:
President of the Republic of South Africa
His Majesty, King Goodwill Zwelithini KaBhekuzulu
National Department of Water Affairs
National Treasury
Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs
Office of the Premier in KwaZulu-Natal
KwaZulu-Natal Department of Education
Amakhosi
Municipalities
Customers
Suppliers
Financial institutions
Professional bodies
Employees
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“The content was very relevant and
updated from what we know.
We were given enough awareness.”
Nqobile Xulu, GX Marketing, about the Mhlathuze
Water Supplier Development Workshop held on
17 May 2013.

I would like to see the new potable
water line that’s connected to Hillview
Reservoir operations.
Shabeer Ahmed Gangat, Tronox Sands
Customer Care Survey 2012/2013

Derek Fish, Director of the UNIZUL Science Centre

ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013
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Thobile Mhlanga from Amandlethu
Secondary School rated Nsezi Water
Treatment Plant tour as ‘excellent’
after participating in Science Teacher
Programme.

“I like to thank you for what you’ve
done for us. Our Women’s Day
function was excellent and we enjoyed
it. We really appreciate it as women
of Mhlathuze Water.”
Audrey Ntombifikile Khumalo,
Operator at Nsezi

Mthethwa Bongukuphiwa, HOD, Sokhulu Primary School

Chairperson’s
Report
“Nsezi Water Treatment Plant
continues to provide water of the highest
quality and in line with SANS
241:2011 standard for drinking water.
We are still the proud holders of the
Blue Drop certificate.”
The achievement of providing water to customers
without interruptions, calls for celebration. I would
like to congratulate Mhlathuze Water's Operations
team which works hard to see that work is successful
and remains so. This is never an easy task, and there
are always those who, from a comfortable distance,
find fault with what is being done - but our task is
excellently done; and I am grateful for that.
Nsezi Water Treatment Plant continues to provide
water of the highest quality and in line with SANS
241:2011 standard for drinking water. We are still
the proud holders of the Blue Drop certificate.

Dudu Myeni (Chairperson)
It is my pleasure to present this Annual Report of
Mhlathuze Water for the period 1July 2012 to 30
June 2013, as stipulated in the Section 44 (1) of the
Water Services Act and other relevant legislation.
Within the spirit of various provisions in the
Constitution of the Republic of South Africa of 1996,
the Public Finance Management Act of 1999, Water
Services Act of 1997, National Water Act of 1998,
Promotion of Access to Information Act of 2000,
Treasury Regulations and other relevant legislation,
Mhlathuze Water continues to operate within ways
that promote good governance.

Mhlathuze Water Board is responsible for the
provision of bulk water services, bulk waste water
disposal services, and local support in the delivery
of water and sanitation services. The task is in
accordance with a set of clear Ministerial guidelines.
We are always expected to give strategic guidance
to the officials of the Board, and we must ensure
that service agreements are reached with all relevant
local authorities. Our task as the Board demands a
high degree of understanding of issues facing our
communities hence it requires dedicated commitment
and self-sacrifice.
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Wise leadership and development are what the Board is
all about. Therefore, if we fail on our mandate, projects
will go to ruin, then we will be denying citizens their right
to access water and sanitation. The first founding value
of our Constitution speaks of the right to ‘isithunzi sobuntu’
(human dignity), and therefore we should uphold it through
service delivery.

prioritised. Mhlathuze Water successfully hosted the
Supplier Development workshop in May 2013.

Of course, our struggle against the legacy of apartheid
and against poverty is not yet over. But it can be safely
said that a lot has been achieved in almost two decades
of democracy.

We continue with more investment in human resource
development in the form of training and support. The right
employee training, development and education, at the
right time, provides big payoffs for the employer in
increased productivity, knowledge, loyalty, and contribution.
Because of that, the entity is the proud holder of the 2012
Employer of the Year Award of the Zululand Chamber of
Commerce and Industries.

One of our responsibilities is to provide guidance towards
the policy framework to transform the water sector, to
overcome the apartheid legacy and create a system that
will benefit citizens regardless of whether they are in rural
or urban areas. Investment in water infrastructure over
the past few years has been significant and we want to
keep it that way. If one looks at the developments in
uMkhanyakude area, where millions in investment have
been spent on infrastructure development, it is evident
that huge efforts have been made. For KwaHlabisa project
alone more than R130 million has been spent and a total
of 3 266 job opportunities have been created. Mhlathuze
has also done justice in ensuring that for these bulk water
infrastructure projects emerging companies are being
considered as well.
Empowerment is fundamental to the transformation of
society. Linked to this is the ability or willingness of the
organisation to deliver an appropriate support to its
stakeholders. During the year under review, for the first
time training aimed at empowering suppliers was
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07

Another highlight for the year under review is that
Mhlathuze Water obtained a Level 3 BBBEE rating, meaning
the entity is committed to promoting meaningful
participation of black people in its business.

The world is changing, with information and communication
technologies being key in the knowledge economy. The
speed with which the new media have penetrated our
lives is amazing hence Mhlathuze Water invested
substantially more in upgrading ICT systems, infrastructure
and tightening monitoring even in procurement processes.
There is still room for more new business. But our
customers need a reason to come to, or to want to do
business with Mhlathuze Water. If we provide the same
quality of service at the same price as our competitor(s),
why should people choose us? If however, we can offer
a different or better service (better quality, fair prices,
faster delivery, better location, etc.) prospective customers
will want to do business with us. Therefore as the Board
we must objectively ask this question 'If I were a customer,
why would I want to do business with Mhlathuze Water?'

Chairperson’s Report ...continued

If we cannot identify two good reasons, then we need to rethink our positioning and our strategies. Therefore more direction is still required
from us as the Board in order for the entity to grow and be sustainable.
I must emphasise the fact that the charge given to the Board, as mandated by the Water Services Act, has been to provide world class water
and other related services to support South Africa's transformation.
I thank all Board members most sincerely for their amiable manner in which we have worked together for Mhlathuze Water, the openness of
our discussions, the friendship we have enjoyed among ourselves, and firm commitment to the realisation of the goals which South Africa's
history and reality have dictated.
I would like to thank the Portfolio Committee on Water and Environmental Affairs for the important oversight work that it performs over the
Water Boards and the Department.
I also wish every employee of Mhlathuze Water well and confidently say: you are an exceptional and immensely talented collective and during
the years I have worked with you, you placed and demonstrated confidence in me as the Chairperson of the Board. Ngibonga kakhulu.

Dudu Myeni
Chairperson of Mhlathuze Water Board
Richards Bay
24 October 2013
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The board
The Board of Mhlathuze Water was appointed by the Minister of Water Affairs Ms Edna Molewa in
accordance with the provisions of the Water Services Act (Act No. 108 of 1997) for a term of office of four
(4) years with effect from 1 March 2011 to 28 February 2015.
The Board is accountable and responsible to the shareholder for the performance and affairs of the organisation.
The Board attends to matters of policy and sets strategic direction and the Executive Committee executes
the plans and reports to the Board on a regular basis. The Board regularly evaluates economic, political,
social and legal issues, as well as any other relevant external matters that may influence or affect the
development of the business or the interests of shareholders and, if appropriate, obtains independent expert
advice. The Board is also responsible for ensuring a comprehensive system of internal control policies and
procedures is operative, and for compliance with sound corporate governance principles.
The Board subscribes and adheres to the recommendations of the King Commission on Corporate Governance
as well as the South African statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (“SA GAAP”) and the
Public Finance Management Act, (“PFMA”). As per King III, the Board is fully aware of its responsibilities,
disclosure and discharging of its duties in the best interests of the organisation. In ensuring that there is
good governance in the organisation, the Board has a written charter that governs its powers, functions and
responsibilities.
Mhlathuze Water recognizes that transparency, disclosure, financial controls and accountability are the
pillars of any good system of corporate governance thus ensuring that it is the organisation's endeavor to
attain highest level of governance to enhance the stakeholder's value.
Mhlathuze Water offers its Board training under IODSA umbrella to ensure that members are kept abreast
with information that relevant to corporate governance.
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MHLATHUZE WATER BOARD MEMBERS
DUDU MYENI
The Chairperson of the Board has vast
knowledge in the education sector, as well as
the three tiers of government: National,
Provincial and Local. She is fully versed with
Traditional Councils and Leadership and is a
well established business woman bringing her
hands on expertise in business, education and
stakeholder management to the board. Her
drive to improve the water sector has landed
her the position as the Chairperson of the South
African Association of Water Utilities and
position as the Vice-President of the African
Water Association. She also serves as the
Chairperson of the South African Airways.

THEMBINKOSI MADIKANE
Chairperson of the Service Delivery
Committee and Member of the
HR/Remuneration Committee has over 18
years of experience in the consulting
engineering environment and provides
leadership on engineering issues that may
impact on service delivery; as well as adding
value to the Human Resources Department.
Mr Madikane is a member of the Institute of
Directors, a Fellow of the SA Institute of
Electrical Engineers (SAIEE), and vice president
of the SAIEE. He is also the Vice Chairman of
the Professional Advisory Committee of
Engineering Council of South Africa (ECSA).
He is a professional engineer of ECSA.

MIMMY ZUMA
Chairperson of the Finance Committee and
Member of the Service Delivery Committee
offers auditing skills, financial economics and
supply chain management skills to the Board.
She has vast management experience in
transformation, BBBEE, contracts, procurement,
and service efficiency. She is also a member
of the Board of ECSA.
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MUSA XULU
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk
Committee and a Member of the
HR/Remuneration Committee hails from
a financial background. He brings sales
and marketing, auditing and finance expertise
to the Board. He is an Associate Accountant
under the SA Institute of Chartered Accountants;
and a member of the SA Institute of Public
Accountants.

POPPY DLAMINI
Chairperson of the HR/Remuneration
Committee and Member of the Service
Delivery Committee has been actively
involved in the environmental and conservation
sectors for over 20 years at grassroots,
professional and executive levels. She projectmanaged the highly acclaimed Umgeni Water
Sustainability Report, which won several
international awards. She introduced and led
the implementation of global best practice and
environmental conservation management,
including global reporting initiative pertaining
to corporate governance. Her solid business
acumen, combined with hands-on experience
is an asset to the board. She serves on the
KZN Nature Conservation Board and is a
Trustee of the Wildlands Trust.

MUSA MZIMELA
Member of the Audit & Risk Committee
and Member of the Service Delivery
Committee has vast experience in public
administration, human resource management,
finance and stakeholder management. He has
also served in the union structures of the print
and paper industries. He has been an Executive
Committee Councillor of the uThungulu District
Municipality since 2004 and is currently the
speaker of uThungulu District Municipality. He
is also a Board Member of Tourism KZN and
Chairs the Audit and Risk Committee of
of that institution.

MHLATHUZE WATER BOARD MEMBERS ...continued

FREDERIK BOSMAN
Member of the Finance Committee and
Member of the HR/Remuneration
Committee has vast experience in local
government because of his involvement since
1973. Mr Bosman has been a member of the
South African Institute of Civil Engineers since
1975 and a Fellow since 1986. He is an Honorary
Fellow and past president of the Institution of
Municipal Engineering of South Africa. He is
a Member of the KZN Planning Development
Tribunal, and was elected Councillor for the
City of uMhlathuze and the uThungulu District
Municipal Council respectively in May 2011.
Mr Bosman previously served on the Mhlathuze
Water's Board from 1980-1994.

NONHLANHLA KHUMALO
Member of the Service Delivery Committee
and Finance Committee Member has
experience in driving rural development,
programme management and social
infrastructure development. In her current role
at the Independent Development Trust, she is
a central driving force of influence regarding
National and Provincial programmes and has
been active in the growth and diversification
of the Kwazulu-Natal (KZN) portfolio.

NICA GEVERS
Member of the Audit and Risk Committee
brings financial acumen spanning 30 years in
the retail, engineering and public sectors, most
of which have been in Management and
Executive positions. Ms Gevers assists with
the board management of financial risks and
compliance with legislation. Her experience
also assist in driving the long-term funding
strategy for the organisation and its sound
financial management and practices. she is a
Chartered Accountant.

ADVOCATE
SIMOSENKOSI CHAMANE
Member of the HR/Remuneration
Committee and Finance Committee has vast
knowledge and extensive experience in the
field of law and has served in many political
structures. He has held, and continues to hold,
very senior positions in the public and freight
industry. He is a member of the Society of
Advocates, KZN Durban Bar.

AMITA BADUL
Member of the Finance Committee and
Member of the Service Delivery Committee
has extensive experience in Local Government
management and Adult Basic Education and
Training. She is a member of the Executive
Committee of the iLembe District Municipality
and Chair of its Finance Portfolio Committee.
Mrs Badul also serves as a member in the
Municipality's Budget and Audit Committee.
Additionally, she is a member of the
Intergovernmental Forum, and a member of the
Board of Stanger Provincial Hospital.

BRIAN RAWLINS
Audit and Risk Committee Member and
Service Delivery Committee Member hails
from an academic background and further offers
hydrological research and training services.
He is currently the Vice Dean for the Faculty
of Science at the University of Zululand. Mr
Rawlins’ expertise in hydrology, environmental
impact assessments, water resource
management and geohydrology adds great
value to the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board of Mhlathuze Water has instituted the following committees
to perform its functions as well as to assist and support management
with specific support and knowledge. All committees operate under
a mandate from the Board and all decisions are recommended to the
Board and recorded in their official minutes.
All Board members have an open invitation to attend any committee
meeting that they are not a serving member of in an observer capacity
only, should they so wish.
Audit and Risk Committee - The Committee is responsible for
appointing auditors and ensuring the entity’s financial reporting is
accurate and complete. They concentrate on audit issues, risk, internal
controls and compliance oversight of the internal and external auditors.
The Committee, in carrying out its duties, has due regard to the
principles of governance and code of best practice as contained in
the King reports. The Committee meets at least four times a year.
Finance Committee - This Committee considers the financial
performance of Mhlathuze Water, budgeting issues and any other
functions the prevailing standards of corporate governance require
of such a Committee. The Finance Committee's specific responsibilities
include, recommending policies that maintain and improve the financial
health and integrity of the organisation, reviewing and recommending
a long-range financial plan for the organisation. The Committee is
also responsible for monitoring the financial performance of the
organisation as a whole and its major subsidiary organisations or
business lines against approved budgets, long-term trends, and
industry benchmarks.
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee - This
Committee concentrates on staff matters, organisational structure,
remuneration and any other functions the prevailing standards of
corporate governance required of such a Committee. The role of the
Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its corporate governance

ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013
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responsibilities in regard to remuneration and strategic human
resources matters, including establishing and implementing a human
resources strategy to ensure that appropriately talented and trained
people are available to implement the business strategy. The
Committee is also responsible for undertaking the appropriate
performance management, succession planning and talent
development activities and programs as well as providing effective
remuneration policies having regard to the creation of value for
shareholders and the external remuneration market.
Service Delivery Committee - This Committee concentrates on
the service being delivered by the organisation to its stakeholders,
evaluation of large projects, oversight of stakeholder interaction and
any other functions the prevailing standards of corporate governance
required of such a Committee.

AD HOC COMMITTEES
Social, Ethics, Governance and Nominations Committee - This
Committee assists the Board in ensuring that Mhlathuze Water
remains a good and responsible corporate citizen, and to perform the
statutory functions required of a social and ethics committee in terms
of good Corporate Governance and in line with King III Report.
Recommendations Committee - This is an ad hoc Committee
consisting of the various Board Committees and is used for the
selection of the Chief Executive and Executives. It is chaired by the
Chairperson of the Board.
Board Selection Committee - This is an ad hoc Committee
contemplated in the Water Services Act for the appointment of Board
Members. Its membership is statutorily determined. For casual
vacancies in the Board, the candidates are interviewed by the
Nominations Committee, a nominee of the provincial Premier and a
nominee of the Department of Water Affairs.

MHLATHUZE WATER BOARD MEMBERS ...continued

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Board and Committee Meeting Attendance - July 2012 to June 2013

Board Meeting

Board Strategy

Board Training

Board Meetings

Special Board Meeting

Strategy Held

Strategy
Attended

Training Held

Training
Attended

Meetings
Held

Meetings
Attended

Meetings
Held

Meetings
Attended

D. Myeni

1

-

1

-

5

5

1

1

A. Badul

1

1

1

1

5

5

1

1

F. Bosman

1

-

1

1

5

4

1

-

C. Chamane

1

1

1

-

5

5

1

1

P. Dlamini

1

1

1

1

5

3

1

-

N Gevers

1

-

1

-

5

3

1

-

N. Khumalo

1

1

1

-

5

3

1

-

T. Madikane

1

1

1

1

5

4

1

1

E. Mzimela

1

1

1

1

5

4

1

1

B. Rawlins

1

1

1

1

5

5

1

1

M. Xulu

1

1

1

1

5

3

1

1

M. Zuma

1

1

1

1

5

3

1

-

Committee Meeting's Report
The Board is governed by a code of ethics and all sub committees function in terms of the Charter approved by the Board. Continuous education
and training is provided for board members to improve and maintain the effectiveness of the Board. Board meetings have been attended and
the details of activities are disclosed below.

Finance Committee
Meetings
Held

Service Delivery Committee

HR/Remuneration Committee

Audit Committee

Meetings
Attended

Meetings
Held

Meetings
Attended

Meetings
Held

Meetings
Attended

Meetings
Held

Meetings
Attended

D. Myeni

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

A. Badul

4

4

-

-

5

5

-

-

F. Bosman

4

4

4

4

-

-

-

-

C. Chamane

4

4

-

-

5

3

-

-

P. Dlamini

-

-

4

4

-

-

-

-

N Gevers

4

3

-

-

-

-

-

N. Khumalo

-

-

4

3

-

-

-

-

T. Madikane

-

-

4

4

5

4

-

-

E. Mzimela

-

-

-

-

5

5

4

4

B. Rawlins

-

-

4

4

-

-

4

4

-

M. Xulu

-

-

-

-

5

5

4

4

M. Zuma

4

2

-

-

-

-

-

-

*B. Mshengu

-

-

-

-

-

-

4

4

* - Independant Member
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GOVERNING BODIES
Mhlathuze Water actively embraces the King Report on Corporate
Governance for South Africa 2009 (King III), which provides a list of
best practice principles to assist and guide directors. King III provides
guidance on various governance related aspects, including:
• Ethical leadership and corporate citizenship
• Boards and directors
• Audit committees
• The governance of risk
• The governance of information technology (IT)
• Compliance with laws, rules, codes and standards
• Internal audit
• Governing stakeholder relationships
• Integrated reporting and disclosure

• Provide a mechanism for the objective review of personal
outside interests.
By implementing the above, the organisation is in a position to:
• Allow individuals, where appropriate, to acquire and maintain
personal outside interests, provided that these do not interfere
with, or have the potential to interfere with, their duties to the
entity, or improperly influence the judgements expected of
them when acting on behalf of the entity.
• Protect individuals from misplaced charges of any conflict of
interest by providing a mechanism for the objective review and
approval (including conditional approval) of appropriate personal
outside interests held by individuals.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST
On an annual basis and at every Board and Committee meeting
members declare any interests and commit to non-disclosure of
information that could unfairly advantage or disadvantage a party.
Disclosure and transparency are the pillars of good governance. They
demonstrate the quality and reliability of information, financial and
non-financial provided by management to lenders, shareholders, and
the public.

The Board ensures, on an annual basis, that adequate and suitable
internal controls are in place and appropriate to meet future needs.
Mhlathuze Water's (MW) approach is to give considerable focus to
the organisational objectives at strategic and operational levels.
Areas of non-compliance have been addressed and the organisation
is striving to meet and exceed customers’ and stakeholders’
expectations.
MW Board and its Executive Management are responsible for the
governance of risk. During the 2012/13 financial year MW, undertook
an in-depth review of its organisational risk profile.

Conflict of interests
Mhlathuze Water has a comprehensive conflict of interests policy
that applies to directors, management and employees in regulating
conditions that constitute or could constitute a conflict.
Objectives of this policy are to:
• Promote transparency and avoid business-related conflicts
of interest.
• Ensure fairness in dealing with the interests of all employees,
other affected individuals and the entity.
• Document the process for disclosure, approval and review of
activities that may amount to actual, potential or perceived
conflicts of interest.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013
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Departmental risk registers were compiled and risks elevated and
incorporated into a new risk table for the organisation. This was done
to ensure that financial risks identified are being monitored and
managed by the organisation. MW’s strategic risk profile, which
comprises risks that could have a significant impact on the achievement
of its strategic objectives, are continually reviewed and reported on
through various management and Board subcommittees.

MHLATHUZE WATER BOARD MEMBERS ...continued

Both Strategic and Operational risk assessments were performed:

Strategic Risks

Operational Risk

Strategic risks and opportunities that could significantly affect the
entity's ability to implement its strategy, many of which can be
mitigated if they are well understood and proactively addressed.
Examples include market demand, spiking input costs, skills and
resource scarcity and cost of funds.

Operational risks and opportunities that are managed proactively every
day by implementing policies and process controls. Examples include
regulatory compliance and fraud prevention.

Strategic Risks:
The main purpose of this strategic risk assessment process was to identify and assess, through a structured and facilitated process, the
strategic risks which may prevent Mhlathuze Water from achieving its stated strategic goals.

Top 10 risks

No.

Risk Description

No.

Risk Description

1

Infrastructure failure

6

Skills shortage in the water environment

2

Increased competition

7

Fraud and corruption

3

Procurement inefficiencies

8

Funding constraints

4

Environmental damage

9

Compliance to relevant regulations and legislations (e.g. Water
Services Act, Water Act, PFMA, National Treasury Regs, etc)

5

Increasing input cost (electricity, raw water,
fuel, staff, chemicals)

10

Availability of water in terms of quality and quantity

Probability

The top 10 risks identified and managed are depicted in a graphic below. The smaller the difference between the current residual risk and
Inherent risk the more effective the controls in place are perceived to be.
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Impact
Inherent risks

Residual risks
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Inherent risks represent the product of the impact and the likelihood
of the risk occurring measured as a risk value. The residual risk is the
product of the inherent risk and perceived control effectiveness
measured as a risk value.
Management will continue evaluating and monitoring the risks on
an on-going basis. A Risk Manager position has been created and
will be filled during the period 2013/14, thereafter Risk Champions
will be appointed and Risk Forums will be introduced.

LEGAL FRAMEWORK
The Board and Management of Mhlathuze Water have pledged and
exercised their commitment to discharging their duty to be recognised
as a good corporate citizen by ensuring compliance to good corporate
governance principles that are inherent in sound business practice.
These are prescribed within a specific applicable legal and regulatory
framework for public entities such as the Public Finance Management
Act, the Water Services Act and the King III Report, which are the
cornerstones of these prerequisites.

WHISTLE BLOWER'S REPORT
The Board of Mhlathuze Water approved a Whistle Blower’s policy.
The Board's objective in approving the policy was to create a positive
whistle-blowing culture which is a critical element in the success of
any risk management system. Promoting better risk management,
helps in preventing the need for more regulation and intervention by
regulators and legislators.
Mhlathuze Water is committed to complying with the provisions of
the Protected Disclosures Act (Act No. 26 of 2000) in ensuring that
whistle blowers who make disclosures are protected in terms of the
Act and are not victimised and subjected to occupational detriment
for blowing the whistle on improprieties.
Mhlathuze Water has a whistleblower's hotline which has been an
effective tool for the Board to help address all forms of corporate
irregularities that have happened at Mhlathuze Water. The contact
number has been made available to all employees, stakeholders, and
the public at large.
Matters which have been brought to the Board's attention and these
have been investigated by Internal Auditors.
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Changes to the accounting standards that impacted on the financial
reporting have been acknowledged and significantly adhered to, to
ensure minimal deviations from the requirements. Mhlathuze Water
realises that compliance is an ongoing process and will therefore
continue to seek sound and innovative ways to ensure full compliance
in all the reporting obligations to both its customers and stakeholders
to ensure transparency, effectiveness and accuracy.

Materiality and SigniFIcance Framework
The Board approved a policy that defines both the levels of significance
and materiality. The Delegation of Authority Policy was reviewed to
align it to the framework.

Supply Chain Management
The Supply Chain Management Policy and Procedure was reviewed
to ensure alignment to the National Treasury Supply Chain Regulations,
and other applicable legislation relating to Supply Chain Management.
Deliberate efforts were made to increase expenditure on black owned
businesses. The target for 2012/2013 was 51% of discretionary spend
and the actual achieved was 63%.

Audit and Risk
Committee Report
“the Audit and Risk Committee formed
the opinion that there were no material
breakdowns in internal controls,
including financial controls, business
risk management and maintaining
effective material control systems.”
The Audit Committee members are:
• Musa Xulu (Chairperson)
• Brian Rawlins
• Elliot Mzimela
• Bonginkosi Mshengu - Independent
• Nica Gevers (Appointed May 2013)
All members of the committee are non-executive
members of Mhlathuze Water.

Purpose
Musa Xulu
Chairperson: Audit and Risk Committee
This report is provided by the Audit and Risk
Committee (Audit Committee) in respect of the
2012/13 financial year of Mhlathuze Water in
compliance with section 38(1)(a)(ii) and 77(a) of the
Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). The Audit
Committee's operations are guided by a detailed
charter that is informed by the PFMA and King III as
approved by the Board.

Membership
The Audit Committee was appointed by the Board
of Directors in respect of the 2012/13 financial year.

The purpose of the Audit Committee is:
• To assist the Board in discharging its duties
relating to the safeguarding of assets, the
operation of adequate systems, control and
reporting processes, and the preparation of
accurate reporting and financial statements in
compliance with the applicable legal
requirements and accounting standards.
• To provide the Chief Financial Officer, internal
and external auditors’ access to the Chairperson
of the Audit Committee or any member of the
Audit Committee as is required in relation to
any matter falling within the remit of the
Audit Committee.
• To meet with the external auditors at least
on an annual basis and discuss external
audit matters.
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• To provide a forum for discussing business
risk and control issues and developing
recommendations for consideration by the Board.
• To monitor enterprise-wide, operational strategic,
regulatory, safety and other risks, as well as to
ensure adequate mitigation thereof by way of
monitoring controls that have been implemented
to curtail and minimise risk.
• To review Mhlathuze Water's financial
statements and other compliance reports.
• To oversee the activities of and ensure
coordination between the internal and
external audit.
• To perform duties that are assigned to it by the
Water Services Act, and as governed by other
legislative requirements.
• To receive and deal with any complaints
concerning the accounting practices, internal
audit or the content and audit of its financial
statements or related matters.
• To conduct annual review of the Audit
Committee's work and terms of reference
and make recommendations to the Board to
ensure that the Audit Committee operates at
maximum effectiveness.

Execution of functions
The Audit Committee has executed its duties and
responsibilities during the financial year in accordance
with its terms of reference as they relate to the
Mhlathuze Water's accounting, internal auditing,
internal control and financial reporting practices.
During the year under review:
• Recommended the appointment of KPMG Inc. as
external auditors for the year ended 30 June
2013 to the Board, and ensured that appointment
complied with all applicable legal and regulatory
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013
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Audit and Risk Committee Report ...continued

•

•

•
•

requirements for the appointment of an auditor. The Audit and
Risk Committee confirms that the auditors are accredited.
Recommended approval of the external audit engagement
letter, the plan and the budgeted audit fees payable to the
external auditor.
Reviewed the external audit plan, evaluated the effectiveness of
external auditors and their independence and evaluated the
external auditors’ internal quality control procedures.
Obtained an annual written statement from the external auditor
that their independence was not impaired.
Determined the nature and extent of all non-audit services
provided by the external auditor and approved all non-audit
services undertaken.

• Obtained assurances that no member of the external audit team
was hired by Mhlathuze Water during the year.
• Obtained assurances from the external auditor that adequate
accounting records were being maintained.
• Considered whether any reportable irregularities were identified
and reported by the external auditors in terms of Auditing
Profession Act, 2005, and determined that there were none.
In respect of the financial statements, the committee amongst
other matters:
• Confirmed the going concern as the basis of preparation of the
interim and annual financial statements.
• Reviewed compliance with the financial conditions of loan
covenants and determined that Mhlathuze Water was not
in breach.
• Examined annual financial statements, as well as all financial
information disclosed to the public prior to submission and
approval by Board.
• Ensured that the annual financial statements fairly present the
financial position of Mhlathuze Water as at the end of the financial
year and the results of operations and cash flows for the financial
year and considered the basis on which Mhlathuze Water was
determined to be a going concern.
• Considered accounting treatments, significant unusual transactions,
fruitless expenditure and accounting judgements.

• Considered the appropriateness of the accounting policies adopted
and changes thereto.
• Reviewed the external auditor's audit report.
• Reviewed the representation letter relating to the financial
statements which was signed by management.
In respect of internal control and internal audit, including forensic
audit, the Audit Committee amongst other matters:
• Reviewed and approved the annual internal audit charter and
audit plan.
• Considered the reports of the internal auditor and external auditor
on Mhlathuze Water systems of internal control including financial
controls, business risk management and maintenance of effective
internal control systems.
• Received assurance that proper and adequate accounting records
were maintained and that the systems safeguarded the assets
against unauthorised use or disposal thereof.
• Reviewed significant issues raised by internal and forensic audit
processes and the adequacy of corrective action in response to
significant internal forensic audit findings.
• Based on the above, the Audit Committee formed the opinion
that there were no material breakdowns in internal control,
including financial controls, business risk management and
maintaining effective material control systems.
In respect of risk management and information technology, the Audit
Committee, insofar as relevant to its functions:
• Reviewed Mhlathuze Water's policies on risk assessment and
risk management, including fraud risks and information technology
risks as they pertain to financial reporting and the going concern
assessment, and found them to be sound.
• Considered and reviewed the findings and recommendations of
the internal auditor.
• Monitored and evaluated significant IT investments, delivery of
services and the management of IT.
NB: Refer to Enterprise Risk Management
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In respect of legal and regulatory requirements to the extent that
they may have an impact on the financial statements, the Audit
Committee:
• Reviewed with management legal matters that could have a
material impact on Mhlathuze Water.
• Reviewed adequacy and effectiveness of Mhlathuze Water's
procedures to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory
responsibilities.
• Monitored complaints received via Mhlathuze Water's ethics line,
including complaints or concerns regarding accounting matters,
internal accounting records, the content of financial statements,
potential violations of the law and questionable accounting and
auditing matters.
In respect of the coordination of assurance activities, the Audit
Committee reviewed the plans and work outputs of the internal and
external auditors and concluded that these were adequate to address
all significant financial risks facing the business.

Independence of external auditor
The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied that KPMG Inc. is
independent of Mhlathuze Water after taking the following factors
into account:
• Representations made by the auditor to the Audit and
Risk Committee.
• The auditor does not, except as external auditor or in rendering
permitted non-audit services, receive any remuneration or other
benefit from Mhlathuze Water.
• The auditor's independence was not impaired by any consultancy,
advisory or other work undertaken by the auditor.
• The auditor's independence was not prejudiced as a result of
any previous appointment as auditor.
• The criteria specified for independence by the Independent
Regulatory Board for Auditors and international regulatory bodies.

Annual Financial Statements
Following review by the Audit and Risk Committee of the annual
financial statements of Mhlathuze Water for the year ended 30 June
2013, the Committee is of the view that in all material respects they
comply with the relevant provisions of Water Services Act, South
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African statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and
fairly present the financial position at that date and the results of
operations and cash flows for the year ended. The Committee has
also satisfied itself of the integrity of the remainder of the annual
report. Having achieved its objectives, the Committee has
recommended the financial statements and annual report for the year
ended 30 June 2013 for approval to the Mhlathuze Water Board.

Going Concern
The going concern assumption is a fundamental principle in the
preparation of financial statements. MW has applied and complies
with applicable accounting principle which assumes that, the
organisation will continue to exist long enough to carry out its
objectives and commitments and will not liquidate in the foreseeable
future.
Under the going concern assumption, MW is ordinarily viewed as
continuing in business for the foreseeable future with neither the
intention nor the necessity of liquidation, ceasing trading or seeking
protection from creditors pursuant to laws or regulations.
All assets and liabilities were recorded on the basis that the entity
will be able to realise its assets, discharge its liabilities, and obtain
refinancing (if necessary) in the normal course of business.
On behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee

Mr. M.M Xulu
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee
Richards Bay
24 October 2013

Executive
Committee's Report
“... In exploring synergies across
our spectrum, we continue to develop
integrated solutions to meet our
customers’ needs. ...”
Mhlathuze Water's results for the year ended 30
June 2013 were characterised by improved financial
performance, accompanied by tight cost control and
better efficiencies across all our operations. Despite
the challenges encountered, we have been able to
deliver reasonably well.
Mhlathuze Water has continued to deliver improved
services to its customers without fail. The Operational
and financial performance reflect a reduction in
volumes. The growth in Revenue is mostly from Tariff
increases . Refer pages 44 - 51 of financial review.
The balance sheet also shows a strong positive trend
over the period which will enable the entity to make
the necessary investments required both to meet its
obligations as well as maintain profitability.

Key performance highlights
The entity performed well against most targets on
key performance indicators. Some of the highlights
are listed below:
• Unqualified audit opinion.
• Achieved a DIFR 0+0 Rate and also received an
award from Federated Employers Mutual
Assurance.
• Exceeded the 51% target of discretionary spent
on black-owned businesses.
• Waste water services without any major
interruption.
• Achievement of Level 3 BBBEE rating.
• Successful supplier development workshop.

• We continued to record surpluses for the fourth
consecutive year.
• There were no major failures of bulk water supply
to our business clients
• Commissioned the first phase of the Jozini Water
supply project. This project will benefit previously
disadvantaged communities around Jozini that
have been without sustainable water supply yet
living within close proximity of the Josini Dam
• Succesful implementation of Phase 3 of the
Schools Sanitation programme to the value of
R150 million.
• Extended footprint, on the working for
water project.
• Received employer of the year Award by
Zululand Chamber of Commerce and Industry.

A vital arm of government for
service delivery
During the year we started implementing a robust,
ambitious business plan that aims at managing the
entity within the context of a developing economy.
As part of that plan, we are aggressively investigating
ways in which we can make Mhlathuze Water an
effective arm of service delivery for government in
providing water services in rural areas. The business
plan also emphasises the need for innovation in
identifying further focus areas to help us drive new
revenue generating streams.
We will continue to monitor and evaluate our
performance through a scorecard that is based on
the principles of triple-bottom-line reporting where
economic, social and environmental sustainability
are considered measures of success.
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Operational relevance
In exploring synergies across our spectrum, we continue
to develop integrated solutions to meet our customer
needs. This also enables Mhlathuze Water to deliver on
the needs of government as spelt out in our mandate.
It is gratifying to be able to make a strong contribution to
advancing government's aims in the provision of water
for all. This is bound to improve the standard of living for
the citizens of Kwazulu-Natal and impact our economy
positively.

Looking after the planet
Mhlathuze Water has started some initiatives earmarked
for reducing our carbon footprint and reducing waste.
We continue to entrench the environmental strategy and
policy throughout the organisation.

Skills retention: The attraction and retention of suitably
qualified and experienced professionals is still a challenge.
We have embarked on a human capital transformation
drive which includes personal mastery, specialised training,
diversity, mentoring and coaching. We are seriously treating
the Personal Development Plans as vital tools for human
resource development.
Safety and security: We invested in upgrading security
and surveillance of our installations and handling operations.
We continue with staff engagements on the impact of
incidents on the business. The safety of our staff and our
customers is clearly of paramount importance, but the
security and safety is also vitally important for our continued
operation as a service provider to the country. We are
confident that the attention we and our partners are giving
to this scourge will result in more successes in the next
financial year.

Key challenges
Major risks
Major risks in the form of litigation, information technology,
fraud and skills retention continue to receive attention.
Litigation: In an effort to reduce our exposure to litigation,
we have tightened our procurement policy and contract
management processes and even provided training for the
bid committee members. The investment in the Dynamics
AX system has assisted in improving the efficiency of our
checks and balances in the procurement process.
Information technology: We spent about R1,6 million
as an investment in information technology in the last
financial year with the aim of improving business efficiency.
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We have identified the challenges we have to deal with
in our quest to provide world class water services and
other related solutions. We are dedicating our efforts to
the following critical success factors:
• Balancing the requirements of our mandate with cost
control measures
• Acquisition and retention of talent
• Tightening our governance particularly on contracting
and procurement processes
• Improving customer service
• Business transformation towards a performance
driven culture
• Fraud prevention

Executive Committee's Report ...continued

Looking forward
We will continue to monitor and to respond to the changes that are affecting our operations.
We are confident that the strategy and the business model outlined above will lead us closer to our mission of being amongst the leading
water service providers in the country.
We are confident that the focus on reducing costs, improving efficiency in operations and exploiting new revenue streams will yield a reasonable
surplus. We will continue to seek creative ways of ensuring that the right of every South African to access to water is met.
Our sincere gratitude goes to our customers, the communities and business we serve, the Shareholders, the Board, management and staff
of Mhlathuze Water, the trade unions and the Parliamentary Water Portfolio Committee on water for making this year yet another
successful one.

Sibusiso Makhanya
Acting Chief Executive
Richards Bay
24 October 2013
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

SIBUSISO MAKHANYA

Brian Ndaba

Acting Chief Executive + Chief Operations Officer

Chief Financial Officer

SWASWA NTLHORO

MANDLA MYENI

General Manager: Scientific Services

Human Resources Manager
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Organisational
Performance Scorecard
(1 July 2012 to 30 June 2013 )

Performance
Objective
1. Water quality
compliance

Main Outcomes

Indicators

Water quality standards Test results, SANS 241
met for portable water

Target 2012/13

Achievement

Comments

97% microbiological
parameters

100%

Target exceeded

95% - chemical
parameters

100%

<5%

< 3.44%

Target exceeded

2.Water losses

Reduced levels of
unaccounted for
water (UAW)

Water lost as a % of
total water produced

3. Reliability of supply

No unplanned
interruptions to supply
exceeding 24 hours

% number of days' supply <1% interruptions
disrupted divided by total
number of possible
supply days

0% interruptions

Target
exceeded

4. Financial Reporting
Compliance

Unqualified audit report

Unqualified
audit opinion

Unqualified
audit opinion

Unqualified audit
opinion for the
2012/2013 financial year

Target met

5. Staff turnover

Optimal staff retention

Labour turnover rate

<5%

4.6%

Target met

6. Effective financial
performance

Internal audit issues
dealt with

Internal audit reports

3 repeat and
unresolved findings

No repeated internal
audit findings.

Target met

7. Bulk supply
agreements with
municipalities/other
customers

Statutory and service
level agreements
in place

Municipalities/other
customers with bulk
supply agreements

100%

Achieved 100%

New service level
agreement signed with:
UMkhanyakude District
Municipality for
laboratory services and
refurbishment of
boreholes.

8a) Improve financial
performance

Improved viability and
sustainability

Current ratio

2.20

2.21

Target met

Total income

R366 million

R343 million

The negative variance of
R22 million is mainly due
to decrease in volumes
(Refer to note 1 of the
AFS)

Total expenditure

(R334 million)

(R275 million)

a) Savings occur on
energy due to less water
supply, chemicals and
depreciation
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Organisational
Performance Scorecard
(1 July 2012 to 30 June 2013 )

Performance
Objective
8a) Improve financial
performance

Main Outcomes
Improved viability and
sustainability

Indicators

Target 2012/13

Achievement

Comments

Gross Profit margin %
(*PA)

81.0%

88%

Target exceeded

Gross Profit margin %
(*SA) - Implementing
agent fees

4%

8.8%

Target exceeded

Net profit margin %
(*PA)

8%

22.0%

Target exceeded, more
revenue received on sec
30 activities

Debt equity ratio

0.51

1.13

Target exceeded

Return on assets %

4%

7.59%

Target met

Debtors days

30 days

43 days

Target not met
Major contributor is the
monies owed by the
Department of Water
Affairs in the secondary
activities, regular follow
ups are conducted

9.Increase BBBEE
spend

% of spend increased
and increased new
entrants

% spent

Maintain above 51% of
discretionary spend

63%

Target exceeded by 12%.

10. Achieve statutory
reporting compliance

Reporting Compliance
Achieved

Statutory submissions
made on time

Statutory submissions
made on time

Achieved target.

Target met

11. Surplus Targets

Targets as per
*SHC met

Financial Reports

R31,826 million

R68 million

Target exceeded

12. Capital Expenditure

Infrastructure available
to meet demands

Overall project
expenditure within R
Target

R139 million

Actual (R28 million)
Target not met.
plus committed (R59
million) =Total R87 million A turnaround strategy
has been approved
which indicated the full
utilisation of capital
budget in the next year

* PA - Primary Activities
* SA - Secondary Activities
* SHC - Shareholders Compacts
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HUMAN RESOURCES
The 2012/13 financial year has proved to be very busy with some significant areas of achievement around HR Planning,
Culture Diversity, Staff Retention, Training and Development, Industrial Relations and Health and Safety.
Considerable success was made in achieving the following priorities and accolades, among others:
• An organisational structure was reviewed within the strategic context, covering the timeframe of the new
corporate strategy. The purpose of reviewing the structure was to ensure that an appropriate structure (numbers
and levels) and staffing profile (competencies) were in place to deliver the objectives of the new
Corporate Strategy.
• A five year Human Resources Plan was developed to provide the framework for Mhlathuze Water's
most important asset, its people. The purpose of the plan is to provide a clear picture of the staff profile needs
as well as recommendations and strategies for recruitment, employee development and retention.
• A benchmark study was conducted against nine Water Boards to benchmark our HR processes, employee
benefits and working conditions. Key findings showed that on the whole, Mhlathuze Water is in line with
market practice in these areas.
• A five year Culture Diversity Plan was developed to promote awareness of workplace diversity within
the organisation, to help develop and maintain a skilled, diverse and effective workforce, to develop a supportive
workplace culture which allows employees to balance their work and personal life and to provide a discrimination
and harassment free workplace, among other things.
• A Staff Retention Policy was developed and approved by the Board, the aim of which is to build a high
retention workforce that reduces staff turnover. The average annual staff turnover rate decreased from 7.91%
in 2011/12 to 4.64% in 2012/13 financial year.
• A one year Salary Increase Agreement was successfully negotiated with the union and an across the
board salary increase of 6.50% was agreed upon which was within budget.
• Mhlathuze Water received an Excellence Award for Health and Safety Performance from Federated
Employers Mutual Assurance in December 2012 and was ranked number two (2) in KwaZulu Natal in the
category of Small and Medium Enterprises. A certificate of excellence was awarded together with a cheque
for R262 000. Mhlathuze Water also achieved a zero (0.00) Disabling Injury Frequency Rate (DIFR) during
the year under review.
• Mhlathuze Water was also voted the Employer of the Year by the Zululand Chamber of Commerce and Industry.
This award acknowledges businesses which have a commitment to employee skills development, a training
culture reaching all levels of their operations and a formal process for recognising and rewarding those who
commit to professional and personal development.
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EMPLOYEE PROFILE
The table below reflects the employee profile as at 30 June 2013. The total staff complement was 160 employees against an approved
complement of 166.

Workforce Profile as at 30 June 2013
Occupational Levels

Male

Female

African

Coloured

Indian

Senior Management

4

-

-

Professionals

4

-

1

Skilled Technical &
Academicall Qualified
Workers

25

-

1

Semi-Skilled

44

1

Unskilled & Defined
Decision Making

14

-

Totals

91

1

White

African

Coloured

Indian

White

Total

-

-

-

-

-

4

1

7

-

1

1

15

4

23

-

5

2

60

-

-

13

-

1

2

61

-

-

6

-

-

-

20

2

5

49

-

7

5

160

A total of forty-two (42) positions were filled, fourteen (14) of those were internal promotions while twenty eight (28) were external appointments.
The recruitment process was managed more effectively in terms of cost and administration. However, as any recruitment takes at least one
month from the advert being placed to interview and then external applicants may have notice period commitments, it could take up to three
or even four months to fill a vacancy. In the short term vacancies were filled on a temporary basis so that provision of services would not
be disrupted.
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HUMAN RESOURCES ...continued

AGE BREAKDOWN (as at 30th June 2013)
The age distribution shows that the majority of employees which is 55% remain within the 30 - 44 age bracket while 28% fall within 45 - 55
age bracket.

<20
29

60%

20-

50%

44

30-

40%
55

45-

30%
20%

59

56-

10%
0%

>60

STAFF MOVEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD JULY 2012 TO JUNE 2013

Staff Movement for the period 01 July 2012 to June 2013

No.

Total new vacancies filled

14

Total replacement vacancies filled

28

Total appointments

42

Number of internal appointments (promotions)

14

Number of designated appointments

42

Number of non-designated appointments

-

Number of resignations

7

Number of dismissals

-

Number of ill-health terminations

-

Number of retirements

3
-

Number of staff deaths

10

Total number withdrawals

4.64%

Turnover for the year at 150 average complement (unplanned separations)
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STAFF RETENTION
Tabled hereunder is the average labour turnover rates and the projected labour turnover rate for 2012/13 in comparison to 2011/12 actuals:

Projected Full Year 2012/13

Actual Financial Year 2012/13

Previous Year Actual 2011/2012

Number of staff

166

160

143

Staff turnover

5%

4.64%

7.91%

The overall annual average staff turnover rate decreased to 4.64% in 2012/13 from 7.91% in the previous financial year. This average turnover
rate of 4.64% is lower than the projected staff turnover rate of 5% and marks an improvement in our initiatives to create an enabling work
environment for our employees to excel.
This year our recruitment and retention strategies have continued to focus on employment equity. The number of female employees has shown
an increase on previous year's 36% to 38% in 2012/13. There are 0.01% of employees with disabilities; compared to none in the previous years.
The complexion of our race profile has changed slightly with the employment of a coloured employee as shown in the pie-chart above. More
efforts are being made to improve on these statistics by refining our recruitment strategies and tactics.

Gender Profile

Race Profile
Male 62%

Female 38%

African 87%
Coloureds 1%

Indian 6%

White 6%

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT
Analysis of training and development during the year under review.
• Staff Training
The 2012/13 Workplace Skills Plan was implemented successfully as approximately 95% of the planned training was completed at a cost
of R1 628 647. More than 900 man-hours were spent on training and this marked an improvement on previous year's 656 man-hours. Further
more, an amount of R177 988 was received as a rebate from the Energy and Water SETA. This money would be used for further organisational
development initiatives. Equitable distribution of training was done in terms of gender, race and disability.
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HUMAN RESOURCES ...continued

• Teambuilding
It was also identified through the staff satisfaction survey that
teambuilding was required for all managers and employees in
general to enable them to be fully effective in their team roles.
A group of approximately thirty senior and middle managers
participated in a two day teambuilding session. Various activities
were undertaken to help boost the morale of the team members.
The goal was to develop a team that could work together to
achieve the strategic goals and objectives of Mhlathuze Water.
More teambuilding sessions would be arranged in the new
financial year to ensure that employees of all levels attend.
• Internal and External Bursaries
A total of twenty six (26) internal bursaries to the value of R455
133.00 were approved; fifteen (15) of those were awarded to
female employees and two (2) were for people with disabilities.
Further, two bursaries to the value of R118 201.23 were awarded
to external students from needy communities within Mhlathuze
Water's area of supply; one student is in her final year of studies
and the other is in his 2nd year of studies. Both are pursuing
Civil Engineering studies at the University of KwaZulu Natal.
• Internships and Vacation Employment
In December 2012, seventeen (17) vacation students from local
schools were appointed for a period of approximately one month
in order to furnish them with valuable practical experience which
is complimentary to their fields of study. Preference was given
to previously disadvantaged children. In June 2013, ten (10)
interns from the Umfolozi FET College were appointed and they
all completed a two weeks programme essential for the
completion of their studies.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS
Management continues to meet with the recognised Trade Union
on a regular basis, and have continued to foster a positive employee
relations climate. A transparent and objective approach to recruitment,
for example, is being followed where the Union is invited to interviews
as an observer.

Salary negotiations were successfully conducted at regional level
and a 6.50% across the board salary increase was agreed upon. Over
and above, employees would receive an overall 2% performance
based salary increase which would be payable based on the
performance evaluation scores of the individual employees.

EMPLOYEE WELLNESS PROGRAMME
Mhlathuze Water has continued to look at ways to improve the
health and wellbeing of all employees. Various interventions were
co-ordinated to address health and wellness issues. These included
the following campaigns, among other things: substance and alcohol
abuse awareness, coping with shift work seminar, breast cancer
awareness, stress management, diversity management and HIV/AIDS
management issues. Three employees were referred for professional
counselling for personal as well as financial problems.

HEALTH AND SAFETY
Good progress has been made during 2012/13 on managing health
and safety across the organisation. This can be demonstrated through
the successful maintenance of the OHSAS 18001 Management
System and initiatives undertaken to reduce and manage health and
safety related risks. As a result, our disabling Injury Frequency Rate
(DIFR) has been reduced from 1.7 in 2011/12 to 0.00 in 2012/13.
The Health and Safety Team have provided a proactive service to
the installations on health and safety issues through offering advice,
attendance of meetings, conducting investigations and delivery of
safety induction to all employees. A total of 134 employees
participated in the General Safety Induction Programme. Further, 11
Safety Training courses were delivered to 76 delegates. Training
courses delivered included Legal Liability of OHSACT, Health and
Safety Representatives Training, Fire Fighting, First Aid Training,
Construction Safety Management, Forklift Training, Root Cause
Analysis, Major Hazard Installation, Introduction to SAMTRAC,
OHSAS 18001 Lead Auditor and Snake Awareness.
Overall the health and safety performance of Mhlathuze Water
employees has been managed well during the year under review.

Three cases were referred to the CCMA and were all resolved through
conciliation.
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SCIENTIFIC SERVICES
Ensuring Safe Drinking Water
In order to ensure that our domestic customers are supplied with water that is potable, treated water at Nsezi Water
Treatment Plant is tested against SANS 241:2011 standards for drinking water. Water samples are taken and analysed
regularly at Mhlathuze Water is ISO 17025 accredited Analytical Testing Facility based at the Head Office Complex in
Richards Bay. In line with the requirements of the revised standard, a risk assessment was done on the entire system i.e.
source to consumer to identify and mitigate risks that could potentially impact the quality of water supplied. This resulted
in the preparation and adoption of a Water Safety Plan for the entire Nsezi system. A risk assessment of the monitoring
programme was also done to ensure that the monitoring is structured such that it takes into account the inherent risks in
the system. Since Mhlathuze Water's monitoring was already comprehensive, the process did not result in a lot of changes.
The current monitoring exceeds some of the requirements so as to cater for other operational requirements and contractual
obligations with certain industrial consumers.

Potable Water Compliance
Mhlathuze Water, from its installation at Nsezi, supplies potable water to the uMhlathuze Municipality in the town of
Empangeni. There is also an emergency connection into the Richards Bay system. Treated water at Nsezi Water Treatment
Works continues to be of the highest quality, and in line with the new SANS 241:2011 Compliance for the final treated
water is tabled below.

Tier 1: Compliance with SANS 241:2011 Parameters (July 2012 to June 2013)
Compliance (%)

Water Quality

Acute Health 1: Microbiological

100

Excellent

Acute Health 1: Chemical

100

Excellent

Chronic Health

100

Excellent

Aesthetic

100

Excellent

Operational

99.6

Excellent

Risk Category

Tier 2: Risk associated with Acute Health 2 Parameters
(July 2012 to June 2013)

Total No. of Tests

Total Number Complying

Cytopathogenic Viruses

1

100%

Cryptospiridium

1

100%

Giardia

1

100%
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Effluent Compliance
Mhlathuze Water owns and operates the biggest offshore wastewater
disposal system in South Africa. Two pipelines (buoyant A-Line and
dense B/C-Line) extending four and five kilometers out to sea
discharge industrial wastewater from the big industries in Richards
Bay and surroundings, sludge from Nsezi Water Treatment Plant and
macerated sewage from the uMhlathuze Municipality. The
organisation has a license (issued by Department of Water and
Environmental Affairs (DWA) to dispose industrial wastewater in
terms of Section 21 (h) of the National Water Act, 36 of 1998. In
line with the license, samples are taken daily from the contributors
and also from the combined effluent at the pump station before it
is mixed with seawater and pumped into the sea. Overall compliance
for the A-Line (discharging the buoyant effluent) was 88%. B-Line's
(discharging the dense gypsum from Foskor) compliance was 64%.
A number of meetings were held with representatives from the
Departments of Water and Environmental Affairs to finalise processes
that Mhlathuze Water needs to follow to review the license in an
effort to resolve the persistent non-compliance on certain parameters
for both pipelines. This process culminated in the appointment of a
consultant to facilitate the process and the application was submitted
to DEA-O&C in February 2013.
An Effluent Pipeline Forum public meeting was held in April 2013
wherein Mhlathuze Water made presentation on results of the daily
monitoring and other relevant operational issues relating to the
pipelines. Representatives from companies discharging into the
pipelines, Departments of Water and Environmental Affairs, media
and other stakeholders also attended the meeting. The CSIR, who
have been appointed to perform a bi-annual bio-monitoring survey
(as required by the license) presented results of the studies conducted.

Environmental Management
System (EMS)
Mhlathuze Water's EMS has been ISO 14001 certified since February
2006. This certification is a voluntary process which involves an
external certification body performing audits to confirm compliance
to an international standard. This strategic initiative indicates the
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organisation's commitment to comply with environmental legislation
and to conduct its operations in an environmentally friendly manner.
The organisation was re-certified in February 2012 by SABS. This
certificate is valid for 3-years up to 2015.

Quality Management Systems
Mhlathuze Water has been ISO 9001 certified since February 2011.
The last surveillance audit was done in December 2012 by SABS to
check continual improvement. In this audit only 3 minor nonconformances were raised. The current certificate is valid for 3 years
up to 2014.
The Scientific Services Laboratory has been ISO 17025:2005 accredited
since May 2002. The last surveillance audit was done in June 2013
by SANAS to check continual compliance to the requirements of the
standard. Eleven non-conformances were raised and these have
been cleared. The current certificate is valid for 5 years up to 2017.

Blue Drop Certification
Mhlathuze Water has participated in Blue Drop System (BDS)
assessments since 2010. In the first year of assessment a BDS score
of 88.9% was achieved for the Nsezi System, which is one of the
four systems in the uMhlathuze Municipality. After the second
assessment in 2011/12, the system received Blue Drop Certification
with a final score of 98.39%. A minimum score of 95% is required
to achieve Blue Drop Certification and formal assessments are
conducted every two years. The next round of assessments is
scheduled for November 2013 and March 2014.
Blue Drop scores are determined based on assessments conducted
by a panel of drinking water professionals on five key areas. These
are: water safety planning, drinking water quality process management
and control, drinking water quality compliance, management
accountability and local regulation and asset management.
Compliance in all these areas ensures that not only drinking water
quality compliance is taken into account as it was traditionally the
case, but also the overall management of the drinking water supply
chain and control of risks to water quality is considered.

SCIENTIFIC SERVICES ...continued

The National Microbial Monitoring
Programme (NMMP)
Mhlathuze Water has been implementing the National Microbial
Monitoring Programme (NMMP) on behalf of DWA-RQS since 2006.
The programme is aimed at providing information on the status,
trends and extent of pollution in terms of microbial surface water
resources in priority areas and also information that helps to assess
the potential health risk to humans associated with possible use of
faecal polluted water resources. The organisation has been the
Regional Coordinator and Implementing Agent of the programme for
the past 6 years and has signed another 2 year contract which expires
in February 2014. There are currently 15 sites that are being monitored
in the uMkhanyakude and uThungulu District Municipal areas.
Stakeholder meetings are scheduled 4 times a year to report on the
progress of the project.

Catchment Management Forums (CMF)
Mhlathuze Water participates in the Catchment Management Forums
established by the Department of Water Affairs as mandated by the
National Water Act. The organisation has been an active participant
in the Mhlathuze CMF, which is one of the five forums in the uSuthu
to Mhlathuze Water Management Area.

The programme has since moved to the Department of Environmental
Affairs (DEA) with the same mandate. A 3-year Memorandum of
Agreement has been signed between MW and DEA and it expires
in March 2014. This is an Expanded Public Works Extended Programme
aimed at alleviating poverty through job creation for rural communities
while assisting them in terms of skills development. It aims to
conserve water resources through the removal of alien invasive
plants. Approximately 600 people have benefited from this project,
including: 60% women, 38% youth, and 2% people with disabilities.
A number of projects were implemented in Mfule River, Goedetrouw
Dam and Mhlathuze River (Waterweeds). A total area of about 6
030 hectares was cleared during the financial year 2012/13 and this
amounted to about 95% of the expected target, using more than 24
542 person days.

Awareness and Education
Mhlathuze Water through the Water Resources Management unit
embarked on awareness and education campaigns on water
conservation. This was done as part of a Forum consisting of different
stakeholders (government, private sector and NGOs) within the
uThungulu District Municipality and uses a calendar of special days
throughout the year. The table below outlines activities undertaken
during the reporting period.

Working for Water Programme
Mhlathuze Water has been implementing the Working for Water
Programme for the Department of Water Affairs (DWA) since 2003.

EVENT

DATE

ACTIVITIES

Weedbuster Week

October 2012

•

Mhlathuze Water and WFW officials visited the Mfule project and spent time with the workers and
community benefiting from the project. Presentations were done to create awareness to the
communities about the dangers of the Alien Invasive Plants.

Water Week

March 2013

•

Mhlathuze Water participated in the Waterthon where all employees ran and walked from the Head
Office complex to Nsezi Water Treatment Plant.
Under the theme “Water is Life: Respect it, Enjoy it & Conserve it”, a presentation was done to
the staff to create awareness on Water Conservation.

•
Environment Week

June 2013

•
•

Mhlathuze Water partnered with other stakeholders in the Uthungulu Forum to commemorate
Sanitation/Environmental Week in Nkandla Local Municipality on 07 June 2013.
A presentation done by Mhlathuze Water to inform the community about the projects MW is involved
in and to create awareness on environmental conservation.
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
Thukela Transfer Scheme
Mhlathuze Water operates and maintains this transfer
scheme on behalf of the Department fo Water Affairs.
The overall operation of the scheme was acceptable during
the financial year under review. This entails the operation
of the community pumps supplying raw water to the
uThungulu water treatment plant, treating water and
supplying communities and the regular test running of the
emergency transfer pumps.
uThungulu District Municipality completed the construction
of a 10Ml/day plant which replaced the old 3Ml/day plant
which was receiving raw water supply from the two Curo
pumps at Madungela pump station. These two Curo pumps
were inadequate to supply raw water to the new water
treatment plant. uThungulu District Municipality then
appointed a consultant to design the suitable pumps for
the raw water supply for the new water treatment plant.
Consulting engineers were appointed by uThungulu District
Municipality to design the new raw water pumping system
including the electrical switchgear.
The community pumping system was upgraded, managed
by the consultant appointed by uThungulu District
Municipality and Mhlathuze Water was responsible for
the coordination of activities and compliance to health
and safety requirements. The system was commissioned
and one pump is currently in operation.

Both studies were completed in the 2012/13 financial year.
Findings of the Operating Rule Study are currently being
reviewed. With respect to the structural integrity of the
weir, the study recommended that the short term remedial
measures should be implemented in the forthcoming
financial years, and that construction of a new weir should
be included in the 5 year capital plan. A total of 47 535
957 m3 of raw water was pumped from the scheme.

Nsezi Water
Treatment Plant
Mhlathuze Water has maintained its Blue Drop certification
for the Nsezi Water Treatment Works. The Progress
Assessment Tool (PAT) assessments were submitted to
the Department of Water Affairs.
A total of 44 495 229 m3 was abstracted by the Nsezi
WTW, 41 983 054 m3 from Mhlathuze River and 2 512 175
m3 from Nsezi lake. The WTW production water losses
were 4.5%. The water losses were higher this financial
year because of the gravity filter refurbishment project
completed in the first half of the year. Eight old gravity
filters were refurbished and the gravity sand filters were
replaced. Four new filters as well as the eight old gravity
filters were each fitted with new online turbidity meters.
The profile below outlines the total purified water quantities
supplied to the consumers.
Total Water Purified Water Supply

Mhlathuze Transfer Scheme
To keep abreast with new developments with respect to
water demand two studies were commissioned associated
with the Mhlathuze River. A study is currently being
undertaken to review the Operating Rule for the Mhlathuze
catchment which includes Goedertrouw Dam (Lake
Phobane) in order to confirm the expected yield of the
system considering new demand (i.e Zulti South mining
etc.). The scope of the study included the re-evaluation of
the structural and general integrity of the abstraction weir.
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Chemical usage in the purification process was lower due to lower
raw water turbidities and the successful implementation of a plant
optimisation project to ensure efficient dosing of purification chemicals.
A need to implement a SCADA system was identified for the plant
for improved operational control. The implementation process for
the system has commenced and will be concluded during the 2013/14
financial year.

Effluent Scheme
The bouyant and dense effluent systems are of a corrosive nature
hence critical spares for both of these sytems are always available
for critical repairs. During the financial year under review the effluent
scheme operated under close monitoring to prevent any downtime
to the system. No major breakdowns were experienced except for
failure caused by wear and tear (due to the corrosive nature of the
effluent) on the 904 stainless steel flange adaptor on the dense
effluent delivery line from Foskor.
A-line
Intensive maintenance was conducted on the A-line offshore pipeline
which included the following activities:
• The pipeline inspections, checking for condition of the overall
pipeline including flanges, bolts, over-clamps, saddles and anodes.
• Pipeline survey, full annual pipeline survey from the onshore to
offshore including the survey over sea sand build up over pipeline.
• During the inspection that was conducted between March and
April 2013 it was discovered that two over-clamps, A7 and
A8 were heavily fouled with marine growth and high level of
oxidation (corrosion).
• A7 and A8 over-clamps were replaced with the new hot dip
galvanized mild steel over-clamps with anodes.
B-line
B-line pump station is available as a standby to C-line pump station.
Minimal maintenance to keep plant available was conducted on the
B-line. The project to install the forth C-line pumps is being executed
and this will render the C-line dense effluent system to have a 100%
redundancy thereby lessening the need for this line as a backup.
The following activities were conducted on the B-line:
• Bathymetric survey to quantify the gypsum buildup over the
diffuser section.
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• Pipeline survey, full annual pipeline survey from the onshore to
offshore including the survey over sea sand build up over pipeline.
• An inspection to ascertain the gypsum buildup over the nonoperational part of the line. It was found that the gypsum
in dissolving.
C-line
C-line pump station is available with two pumps in operation
and one pump on standby. The following activities were conducted
on line:
• Bathymetric survey to quantify the gypsum buildup over the
diffuser section.
• Pipeline survey, full annual pipeline survey from the onshore to
offshore including the survey over sea sand build up over pipeline.
• Dredging of the gypsum buildup over the diffuser section, which
was a success with total clearing of the gypsum achieved.
A video footage was produced as proof to the success of the
dredging operation.

Maintenance, plant efficiency
and availability
Plant availability for the financial year under review was 99.4%
(target >90%). The experienced downtime was a result of minor
breakdowns which only rendered part of the plant unavailable without
affecting the total availability of the plant. Only one breakdown
caused an interruption to one customer (Foskor). The breakdown
lasted only for 12 hours. Such breakdowns are expected in the system,
due to the nature of the effluent. The shutdown process was
procedurally communicated with the client as per the existing
contractual agreement.
A Preventative Predictive maintenance strategy is applied to
Mhlathuze Water plant equipment when conducting maintenance
activities. The results of maintenance performance measures obtained
when applying this strategy are stipulated below.

2012/2013

Actual

Target

Planned maintenance

97.1%

95%

2.9%

5%

Unplanned maintenance

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE ...continued

To address and eliminate future effects of prolonged power
supply outages or failures resulting in production losses for
customers. Mondi offered to provide Mhlathuze Water with the
agreement of uMhlathuze Municipality as the power supply
authority with an emergency backup power supply. Through the
assistance of consultants, the design for the system was
completed and service providers will be appointed for
implementation.

Engineering Projects
Nsezi Water Treatment Plant upgrade
The objective of this project was to refurbish and upgrade the
existing Water Treatment Plant in order to increase the output
from 134ML/d to 205ML/d, also to extend the pipeline, and
build new filters, clarifier, inlet tower and a small balancing
reservoir. This also included the 1200mm diameter steel pipe
which would be used to pump water from the river directly to
the inlet tower. The project started in 2010 and was completed
early in 2012. Further to this a new project for the construction
of Nsezi Intake Pumpstation as well as dredging of the Nsezi
Lake to maintain the operation of the intake pump station viable
are in progress.

Empangeni Connection Phase II
The objective of this project was to extend the existing Empangeni
pipeline by 7.2km from the existing end point to Hillview Reservoir.
The scope also included upgrade and refurbishment of the
pumpstation and the telemetry system. The project started in
2010. The construction has been completed.

Nsezi Mondi/City of Mhlathuze
Pumpstation

will be replaced, a separate pumpstation will be constructed to
supply the City of Mhlathuze. Construction associated with
replacement of the Mondi pumps is in progress and design of
the city pumpstation will be completed by July 2013.

Regional Bulk Master Plans
The future planning in the region is on-going with Mhlathuze
Water engaging with all Water Service Authorities in the region
to ensure that new projects for implementation are identified.
Possible funding mechanisms for some of the major schemes
have been identified with the aim of growing and expanding
Mhlathuze Water's consumer base and providing high quality
services to the community and industry.

Implementing Agent Projects
Hlabisa Bulk Water Supply
The funder of this project is the Department of Water Affairs
(DWA). Mhlathuze Water was appointed by Umkhanyakude
District Municipality (UDM) as an Implementing Agent.
The objective of this project is to construct bulk water pipelines,
reservoirs and pump stations in the Hlabisa area. The project
is sub divided into 4 sections.
Section 1a
Southern part of Hlabisa Town
Section 1b
Southern part of Hlabisa Town
Section 2a
Northern part of Hlabisa Town
Section 2b
Northern part of Hlabisa Town
This project started in 2008 and is expected to be completed
in 2014.
The total amount approved for the project is R187 million.

During the year a feasibility study was completed on the upgrade
of the Mondi pumps and augmentation of the supply system to
the City of Mhlathuze. Going forward the existing Mondi pumps
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Dukuduku Water Supply Project
The objective of this project is to provide solutions to the water
supply challenges of Mtubatuba and surrounding areas. The project
will also ensure that there is an equitable distribution of water to
all the users, including the communities of Dukuduku, Khula, and
Ezwenelisha. This project started in 2011 and the targeted date for
completion is March 2014. The total amount approved funds by
DWA is R137 million.

Jozini / Ingwavuma Bulk
Water Supply
The objective of this project is to implement a bulk water supply in
the rural area between Jozini and Ingwavuma towns thereby providing
these communities that have no access to purified water. The project
covers the construction of a pump station, reservoirs, a water
treatment plant and laying of pipes. The total funding transferred to
Mhlathuze Water by the Department of Cooperative Governance
and Traditional Affairs to date is R74 million. DWA committed to
transfer the balance of the budget for this project which is
R1.3 billion. This project started in 2010. Phase 1 was completed
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31 October 2011. Targeted date for Phase 2 of this project is end of
November 2016. DWA is now funding the bulk supply part and
Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs funds
the reticulation part of the project.

Schools Ablution Facilities Project
Mhlathuze Water was appointed by the National Department of
Education for a three year period from 2010/11 to provide sanitation
and water to schools on the priority list in five district municipalities;
Amajuba, Umzinyathi, Uthungulu, Zululand and Umkhanyakude.
The first phase of the project with a budget of R29 million earmarked
for 137 schools commenced in November 2010 and was completed
in June 2011. A further R50 million was made available for 2011/12.
The KwaZulu-Natal Department of Education appointed Mhlathuze
Water as an Implementing Agent for a further three years starting
from the financial year under review.
The current approved budget for 2013/14 is R214 million earmarked
for 174 schools.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
1. INTRODUCTION
The financial overview is an analysis of key areas of the financial results and financial position of Mhlathuze Water for
the year under review and must be read in conjunction with the annual financial statements.
The positive financial performance in the current financial year is a result of higher revenues generated and operational
efficiencies.

2. OPERATING PERFORMANCE
2.1 YEAR ON YEAR ANALYSIS OF OPERATING PERFORMANCE
Mhlathuze Water has maintained strong operating profits. Overall the profit for the year of R68 million reflects an increase
of 31% from previous year.

2013
kl’000

Volume sold

108,927
R’000

2012
kl’000

118,375

%
change

(8%)

R’000

Revenue
Bulk water
Waste water
Other activities (Section 30 activities)

314,971
193,304
102,107
19,560

297,518
191,113
95,077
11,328

6%
1%
7%
73%

Cost of Sales

(37,999)

(43,443)

(13%)

Gross Profit
GP %

276,972
88%

254,075
85%

9%
3%

15,450

11,502

34%

(213,171)

(198,428)

7%

79,251

67,149

18%

(11,181)

(15,219)

(27%)

68,070

51,930

31%

Other operating income
Other operating and administration expenses
Profit from operations
Net finance costs
Surplus for the year

2.2 VOLUMES SOLD
The decrease in volumes of 8% is mainly due to the decline in raw water volumes due to Richards Bay Minerals abstracting
less raw water than previous year.
Waste water volumes remained constant for the year.
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2.3 Revenue
Revenue increased by 6% mainly due to the 73% increase in Other Activities.

Revenue Segment Information
2013

2012

Bulk water

Bulk water

61%

64%
Other activities
Section 30
6%

Other activities
Section 30
4%

Waste water
33%

Waste water
32%

Actual Revenue Segment Information
as at 30 June 2013 (R’000)

Actual Revenue Segment Information
as at 30 June 2012 (R’000)

Bulk water

60

19,5

07

,1
102
,304
193

Bulk water

Waste water

28

11,3

Other activities
(Section 30)

3

201

,113
191

77
95,0
2
201

Waste water
Other activities
(Section 30)

2.3.1 Primary activities

2.3.2 Other Activies (Section 30)

Bulk Water

Contribution to total revenue increased from 4% last year to 6% in
current year. Secondary activites in terms of the Water Services Act
No. 108 of 1997 is any services provided by Water Boards other than
Primary Activities.

The bulk water segment form 61% (2012: 64%) of total revenue. The
volumes for bulk water decrease for this financial year due to the
decrease in raw water volumes.

Waste Water
Waste water is 33% (2012: 32%) of total revenue. It remained constant.
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW ...continued

2.4 Cost structure breakdown
2013

2012

Net finance costs
4%
Other operating expenses

Net finance costs
6%
Other operating expenses

Cost of sales
14%

Cost of sales
17%

12%

15%

Staff costs

Staff costs
25%

21%

Depreciation/
amortisation

Depreciation/
amortisation
17%

17%

Energy
15%

Chemicals/purification
4%

Energy

Chemicals/purification
4%

15%

Maintenance materials

Maintenance materials
8%

6%

Cost Structure 2013 (R’000)

Cost Structure 2012 (R’000)

00

70,0

00

60,0

181

11,

00

50,0

7

08
38,
089

87

587

00

10,0

31,
0
,31

4

6

00

16,

270

00

20,0

7
38,

65,

5
,49

2

999

0

37,999
65,587

Chemicals/purification
Depreciation/amortisation

38,787
16,042

Other operating expenses
Net finance costs

10,089
44,579
38,087
11,181

Cost of sales
Staff costs
Energy
Maintenance materials

21,

37

00
53,

0

0
10,0

37,

44

38
10,

30,0

042

00
20,0

965

0
0,00

10,

00
30,0

Cost of sales
Staff costs
Energy
Maintenance materials

5
44,

219

15,

0

0
50,0

79

00

40,0

0

00

60,0

443

43,

43,443

Chemicals/purification

53,002
37,495
21,270

Depreciation/amortisation
Other operating expenses
Net finance costs

10,386
44,310
31,965
15,219

2.4.1 Cost of Sales
Overall cost of sales decreased by 13% from the previous year and forms 14% of all costs.
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2.4.2 Operating, general and administration expenses
• Staff cost increased by 24% from the previous year mainly due to the vacancies that were filled during the year. Staff complement at end
of June 2013 was 160 (2012: 143).
• Energy costs only increased by 3% due to a decrease in purified water volumes compared to the year prior. Refer note 2 of the
financial statements.
• Maintenance decreased by 25%. In the year prior R 6.6 million was for maintenance done to the A line for loss arising out of a
storm damage.
• Chemicals decreased by 3% mainly due to a decrease in purified volumes compared to the previous year. Refer note 2 of the financial statements.
• Depreciation/amortisation only increased by 1% against the previous year mainly due to no major assets or projects were commissioned
during the year.
• Other operating expenses increased by 19% (the dredging of Nsezi Lake contributed to 7% of that increase).

2.4.3 Finance costs
Net finance costs decreased by 27% due to higher investments and reduction of borrowing levels.

2.5 Operating Indicators
Annualised volumes (kilolitres)

Revenue

Primary activities

7
,92
108
3
201

,375
118
2
201

1
,97
314
3
201

Surplus for the year

Gross profit %

930
2
201

85%
2
201

88%
3
201
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297
2
201
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51,

70

68,0

3

201

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW ...continued

2.5 Operating Indicators
Operating ratio

Current ratio

8

2

0.7

2.3

2
201

0.77

2

201
1
2.2

3

201

3

201

Debt equity ratio

EBITDA

8

1

1.2

4.1

2
201

.13

1

5

3

201

3

201

Average debt collecting on period (days)

Asset turnover ratio (%)

62

41.

1

42.6

3
201

2

201
.13

7

0.3

2
201

2

201
0.35
3
201
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2.6 Supplies and Tariffs

Actual 2013

Supplies

Actual 2012

Contracted bulk demand
Figures in kilolitres
Raw water
Clarified water
Purified water
Waste water disposal

33,382,900
5,475,000
59,130,000
64,751,000

33,382,900
5,475,000
59,130,000
65,083,400

Actual bulk consumption
Figures in kilolitres
Raw water sales
Clarified water sales
Purified water sales
Waste water disposal

4,263,798
3,822,743
36,089,121
39,767,569

9,311,222
4,951,237
39,029,553
41,374,376

Purified water tariff (R/kl)

Raw water tariff (R/kl)

3

1.2

3

2.8

12

20
ual

4

1.3

al
ctu

A

0

3.1

3
201

Dense waste water tariff (R/kl)

Buoyant waste water tariff (R/kl)

3

0.9

Ac
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW ...continued

2.7 CASH FLOW ANALYSIS
2.7.1 Cash flows from operating activities
The net cash generated from operating activities improved from the year prior due to long outstanding monies recovered from the Department
of Water Affairs.

2.7.2 Cash flow used in investing activities
Net cash out flow from investing activities increased significantly due to acquisition of assets.
Capital expenditure (R’000)

119
12
l 20
a
u
t
Ac

19,
401

35,

013

al 2

tu
Ac

2.7.3 Cash flow from financing activities
Total interest bearing borrowings have decreased by 9.45% mainly due to loan repayments.

2.7.4 Cash balances & capital commitments
Sufficient short term investments are held to fund capital commitments that are set out in note 18 of the annual financial statements.
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2.7.5 Return on Assets
The return on assets ratio increased to 7.59% (2012: 6.44%).
Return on assets ratio (%)

4%

6.4
9%

7.5

012

al 2

tu
Ac
13

l 20

a
ctu

A

2.7.6 Funding Requirements
The Business Plan for 2014 shows that the requirement for new funding is not needed for the next financial year and the liquidity is seen as
adequate.

2.7.7 Borrowing Limits
The borrowing limits for the period 2013 to 2015 have been approved by National Treasury in concurrence with the Minister of Water Affairs
and published in the Government Gazette as follows:
As at 30 June:
2013: R232,8 million
2014: R208,5 million
2015: R239,1 million
The borrowing limit is based on Mhlathuze Water borrowing requirements and the funding needed to ensure that the demands from consumers
can be met.
Limits are reviewed on timeous basis, and where there are indicators for limit changes, alteration are undertaken with National Treasury
accordingly.
Borrowing limits utilised:
Borrowing limits

2012

2013

R335,4 million

R232,8 million

Actual

R233,8 million

R211,7 million

Unutilised

R101,6 million

R 21,1 million

Limit

Based on the new plan to be submitted to National Treasury, Mhlathuze Water borrowings for 2014 will be sufficient to cover for all
liquity requirements.
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DIRECTOR’S Report
The Board of Mhlathuze Water has pleasure in
presenting their report for the year ended 30 June 2013.
The report is presented in terms of the Public Finance
Management Act No 1 of 1999, designates the Board
as the accounting authority.

Nature of Business
Mhlathuze Water conducts its activities in accordance
with section 29 & 30 of the Water Services Act No. 108
of 1997.
Other activities as outlined in section 30 of the Water
Services Act, Mhlathuze Water also engages in other
services that complement bulk water service delivery
such as water quality monitoring and environmental
management, laboratory services and acts as an
implementing agent for any sphere of government for
projects related to water service delivery.

Compliance with legislation
The annual financial statements are prepared in
accordance with South African statements of Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (SA GAAP) and the
following relevant legislation:
• Water Services Act No: 108 of 1997
• Public Finance Management Act (PFMA as amended)
No: 1 of 1999 and
• Public Audit Act No: 25 of 2004

Going Concern
The annual financial statements have been prepared
on the going concern basis. The Board of Mhlathuze
Water has reasonable grounds to believe that the
business has adequate resources to continue as a going
in the foreseeable future. The going concern assessment
was undertaken taking into consideration the following:

• Mhlathuze Water has adequate committed credit
facilities from its lenders to fund its operations and
meet its financial obligations in the normal course
of business for the foreseeable future.
• A funding strategy and plan has been developed to
ensure that Mhlathuze Water is able to successfully
fund its capital expenditure programme without
breaching the set financial parameters.
• The operational and financial risks have been
reviewed to determine their impact on the business
under various conditions, and mitigating initiatives,
strategies and controls are in place as reflected in
the business and risk management plans.
• The accumulated reserves have improved by 19.3%
compared to the prior year.
• The debt equity ratio reflected at 1.13 times is
above the set target of 0.51 times.
• The interest cover and cash interest cover are
significantly better than prior year and it's covering
over 7,1 times.
• Cash flow forecasts which are assessed by the
Board on a quarterly basis indicate that Mhlathuze
Water will be able to meet its obligations as they
become due on an ordinary course of business.

Restatement in Previous years' balances
Mhlathuze Water in its capacity as implementing agent
for Rural Development Projects on behalf of Department
of Water Affairs, Department of Education and
Department of Environmental Affairs incurs costs and
recovers amounts arising from project acvtivities. In
the past these amounts payable and receivable were
not recognised on the statement of financial position.
There is no effect on the statement of comprehensive
income for these transactions as Mhlathuze Water had
correctly recognised the implementing agency fees due
in performing these activities.
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Corporate Governance and
Risk Management
The Board supports and complies with the principles of
Corporate Practises and Conduct as set out in the King III
Report which was adopted in the financial year. The Board
is responsible for monitoring the Risk Management process.
For more details on corporate governance and risk
management refer to pages 15 to 17 under Enterprise Risk
Management.

Share Capital and Director's Interests
Mhlathuze Water has no share capital and therefore no
Director has any equity interest in the organisation.
Chairperson
Members
of the Board
Chief Executive
External Member

Independent
1
Non-executive director
Independent
11
Non-executive directors
Executive director (ex officio) 1
Independent
1
Non-executive director

The composition of the Board is set out on pages 11 - 12
of the annual report. Members of the Board SubCommittees are disclosed in the Remuneration Report on
pages 55 to 56. In terms of regulation 28.1 of the PFMA.
Members of the Board and Executive Committee's
emoluments are disclosed in the remuneration report on
pages 55 to 56.

Auditors
Internal Auditors - SizweNtsalubaGobodo
Appointed: 11 October 2012
3 year term
External Auditors - KPMG INC.
Appointed: 27 May 2013
3 year term

Tariff Policy
Mhlathuze Water charges a tariff for services rendered
which ensures that it remains viable and sustainable over
the long term. To achieve this Mhlathuze Water applies
a Scheme-Specific Tariff for Bulk Services and/or time &
material type charges for other services.
The policy takes account of the stipulations contained in
section 10 of the Water Services Act.
The annual tariff review process is in terms of the
requirements of Section 42 of the Municipal Finance
Management Act and Circular 23 issued by National
Treasury.

Financial performance
The overall performance against financial targets was
positive as outlined in more detail under the financial
overview on pages 44 to 51 of the report.

Capital Expenditure and commitments
Business Address
Corner of Battery Bank and South Central Arterial
Alton Industrial Area
Richards Bay
3900

Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment will be financed from borrowings and internal
resources. The capital commitments are set out in note
18 of the financial statements.

Events after Reporting Period
There were no post balance sheet events requiring
adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements.

Postal Address
Private Bag x1047
Richards Bay
3900
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Information required by the Public Finance Management Act No 1 of 1999
In assessing the materiality framework account is taken of the following criteria:
In terms of section 28.3.1 of the regulations of the PFMA, for the purposes of materiality and significance, the Accounting Authority has
developed and agreed a framework of acceptable levels of materiality and significance established at 1% of gross revenue which equates
to R3,15m (2012: R2,9m). Management also apply a qualitative aspect to all errors found.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
There were no fruitless and wasteful expenditure during the current financial year.

Irregular expenditure
There were no material losses from irregular expenditure during the current financial year.

Unauthorised expenditure
There were no incidents or reports of any unauthorised expenditure during the current financial year..

Financial misconduct
There were no incidents or reports of any financial misconduct during the current financial year.
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REMUNERATION REPORT
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee
The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee assists the Board in applying policies approved by the Board for remunerating executives.
The Board's remuneration is determined and approved by the Department of Water Affairs on an annual basis.
The service contract period for each executive is listed below.

Executive

Vic Botes
Sibusiso Makhanya
Mandla Myeni
Swaswa Nthloro
Brian Ndaba

Date of employment

01 September 1984
19 June 2008
07 August 1995
07 April 2008
01 November 2012

Date of appointment in
current position

01 April 2010
01 July 2010
01 July 2010
01 December 2008
01 November 2012

Term of employment

Seconded to SAAWU (March 2013)
30 June 2015 (5 Year contract)
Permanent
Permanent
30 November 2017 (5 Year contract)

BOARD MEMBERS AND EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS
Fees for
services as
board member
R’000

Package
earnings
R’000

Travel &
re-location
allowances
R’000

Performance
incentive
bonus
R’000

53
34
18
32
50
32
62
30
49
56
50
54
39

-

2
10
4
12
13
8
33
3
9
5
4
7
1

-

559

-

111

-

Other services
& acting
allowances
R’000

Total
2013

Total
2012

R’000

R’000

381
31
39
36
37
23
108
66
91
134
123
87
68

436
75
61
80
100
63
203
99
149
195
177
148
108

554
4
48
49
1
91
68
44
133
75
222
88
93
128
68

1 224

1 894

1 666

Non-executive board members
DC Myeni (Chairperson)
NV Gumbi
TM Zuma
BV Mshengu
Prof. PT Sibaya
NN Khumalo
PS Dlamini
N Gevers
A Badul
MM Xulu
EM Mzimela
BK Rawlins
ADV S Chamane
TC Madikane
FG Bosman
Total Non-executive board members
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Fees for
services as
board member
R’000

Package
earnings
R’000

Travel &
re-location
allowances
R’000

Performance
incentive
bonus
R’000

Other services
& acting
allowances
R’000

Total
2013

Total
2012

R’000

R’000

Executive board member
AS Makhanya - Acting Chief Executive
V Botes - Chief Executive*

-

1 477

10

138

105
278

105
1 903

27
1 617

Total Executive board member

-

1 477

10

138

383

2 008

1 644

BS Ntlhoro - General Manager Scientific Services
AS Makhanya - Chief Operations Officer
M Myeni - Human Resources Manager
M Myeni - Acting Chief Executive
(from 10/11/2011 to 22/11/2011 and
15/02/2012 to 24/02/2012)
J Barnard - Acting Chief Financial Officer
(01/07/2012 to 31/07/2012)
BS Ndaba - Chief Financial Officer
T Nkuna - Chief Financial Officer
(Resigned 31/05/2012)
T Mabasa - Acting Chief Financial Officer
(01/08/2012 to 31/10/2012)
K Kruger - Acting Chief Financial Officer
(10/09/2012 to 28/09/2012)
MS Bhengu - Acting General Manager
Scientific Services
(from 03/10/2011 to 7/10/2011)
CG Cele - Acting Chief Operations Officer
(from 07/01/2013 to 18/01/2013)
S Xulu - Acting Chief Operations Officer
(from 21/09/2012 to 05/10/2012)
M Majola - Acting Chief Operations Officer
(from 12/03/2012 to 20/03/2012)
V Govender - Acting Human Resources Manager
(from 18/12/2012 to 04/01/2013)

-

818
1 444
844

81
180
-

75
115
76

114
62
172

1 088
1 801
1 092

917
1 324
1 025

-

-

-

-

-

-

30

-

745

237

-

148
7

148
989

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

624

-

-

-

-

61

61

46

-

-

-

-

18

18

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

9

-

-

-

-

14

14

14

-

-

-

-

15

15

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

13

-

-

-

-

15

15

17

Total Executive staff members

-

3 851

498

266

626

5 241

4 019

Total Executive board member and
Executive staff members

-

5 328

508

404

1 009

7 249

5 663

559

5 328

619

404

2 233

9 143

7 329

Executive staff members

Total Board members and executive
emoluments
* V Botes - Seconded to SAAWU in March 2013
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RESPONSIBILITY OF
ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY
The Board of Mhlathuze Water, as the Accounting Authority, is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of the annual financial statements of Mhlathuze Water comprising the statement of financial position at 30 June
2013, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the notes to the financial statements which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes, in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA GAAP), and in
the manner required by the Water Services Act (Act 108 of 1997) and sub section 55 (i)(b) of the Public Finance
Management Act (Act No 1 of 1999) of South Africa as set out on pages 62 to 99.
The Board's responsibility includes: overseeing the implementing and maintaining of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.
The Board has made an assessment of the entity's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that Mhlathuze
Water has adequate resources to remain operational for the foreseeable future.
The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the annual financial statements are fairly presented in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework.
Approval of annual financial statements:
The annual financial statements of Mhlathuze Water, as identified in the first paragraph, were approved by the board
of directors and signed on its behalf by:

Dudu Myeni
Chairperson
24 October 2013
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Sibusiso Makhanya
Acting Chief Executive
24 October 2013
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS REPORT
Independent Auditor's Report
To Parliament and the Executive Authority, the Minster of the Department of Water and
Environmental Affairs on Mhlathuze Water
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of Mhlathuze Water as set out on pages 62 to 99 which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2013, the statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Accounting Authority's responsibility for the financial statements
The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and
in the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa of South Africa, and for
such internal control as the Accounting Authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, the General Notice issued in terms
thereof and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Mhlathuze Water as at 30 June 2013, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and the requirements
of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Public Audit Act Requirements (PAA)
In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, we
report the following findings relevant to performance against predetermined objectives, compliance with laws
and regulations and internal control, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion.
Predetermined objectives
We performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information in the
Organisational Performance Scorecard as set out on pages 27 to 28 of the annual report, and reported thereon
to the Accounting Authority.
The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of
usefulness and reliability. The usefulness of information in the annual performance report relates to whether
it is presented in accordance with the National Treasury's annual reporting principles and whether the reported
performance is consistent with the planned objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to whether
indicators and targets are measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable and time bound) and
relevant as required by the National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance
information.
The reliability of the information in respect of the selected objectives assessed to determine whether it
adequately reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete).
There were no material findings on the Organisational Performance Scorecard concerning the usefulness and
reliability of the information.
Compliance with laws and regulations
We performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations
regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. We did not identify any instances
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of material non-compliance with specific matters in key applicable laws and regulations as set out in the
General Notice issued in terms of the PAA.
Internal control
We considered internal control relevant to our audit of the financial statements, Organisational Performance
Scorecard Report and compliance with laws and regulations. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we considered sufficiently significant for inclusion in this report.
Other reports
Investigations
An investigation is being conducted to probe the manner in which the contractual values were increased
in respect of the competitive bidding process for one tender. The investigation aims to establish whether
the increase in the tender price was irregular. The investigation was in progress at the reporting date.
KPMG Inc.

Per N Bhoola
Chartered Accountant (SA)
Registered Auditor
Director
24 October 2013
KPMG House,
5 Arundel Close
Kingsmead Office Park,
Durban 4000, South Africa
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with South
African statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA
GAAP), the Public Finance Management Act (Act No. 1 of 1999), and
the Water Services Act, (Act No. 108 of 1997) of South Africa.
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Mhlathuze
Water on the 24 October 2013.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost
basis, except for certain financial instruments, as set out in notes
to the financial statements which are stated at fair value. The
financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

Functional AND PRESENTATION currency
The financial statements are presented in South African Rands,
which is the entity's functional currency. All information presented
have been rounded to the nearest thousand Rand.

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with SA GAAP
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis; including making assumptions concerning future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The actual
results may differ from these estimates. Revisions to accounting
estimates are accounted for prospectively.
Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in

the financial statements is included in the following notes:
• Note 19 - Accounting for an arrangement containing a lease
• Note 19 - Lease classification
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that
have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within
the next financial year are included in the following notes:
• Note 13 - Provisions and liabilities
• Note 6 - Property, plant and equipment
• Note 9 - Trade and other receivables

2. Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to all periods presented in these financial statements.

2.1 Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional
currency of the entity at rates of exchange ruling at the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency at the statement of financial position date are translated
to the functional currency at the rates of exchange ruling at the
statement of financial position date. The foreign currency gain or
loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised cost in
the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for
effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortised
cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end
of the reporting period. Gains and losses arising on translation are
recognised in profit or loss.

2.2 Financial instruments
Non-derivative financial assets
The entity initially recognises loans and receivables on the date that
they are originated. All other financial assets are recognised initially
on the trade date at which the entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
The entity derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to
receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of
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ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in
transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the entity
is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented
in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the
entity has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to
settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
The entity has the following non-derivative financial assets:
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition loans and
receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses. Loans and receivables
comprise trade, staff and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, short term cash
investments and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the entity's cash management
are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the statement of cash flows.
NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The entity initially recognises debt securities issued on the date that
they are originated. All other financial liabilities are recognised
initially on the trade date at which the entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
The entity derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented
in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the
entity has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to
settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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The entity has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: loans
and borrowings, bank overdrafts and trade and other payables.
Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition these financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.3 Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement
Owned assets
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost
of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use,
the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the
site on which they are located.
When property, plant and equipment comprises major components
with different useful lives, these major components are accounted
for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.
Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal
with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are
recognised net within “other income” in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment
is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that
the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the entity and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.
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Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the entity
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction
of qualifying assets are capitalised on qualifying assets in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy.

Depreciation

2.4 Intangible assets

In terms of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the
date they are available for use, or in respect of self constructed
asset, from the date the asset is completed and ready for use.
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
less their estimated residual values using the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. Depreciation is generally recognised in
profit and loss, unless the amount included in the carrying amount
of another asset.
The depreciation methods, estimated remaining useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at least annually.
Land is not depreciated.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods
are as follows:
Water and effluent scheme property, plant and equipment:
• Buildings, civil works, electrical installations and pipelines
20 years
• Plant and equipment
3-10 years
Movable property, plant and equipment:
• Workshop tools, electronic and sundry equipment
3 years
• Vehicles, office, workshop and voice communication equipment
5 years
• Office furniture, laboratory and workshop equipment
5-10 years

Capital work in progress
Capital work in progress is non-current assets under construction
and is stated at cost. Depreciation is not provided on capital work
in progress.

An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the
expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the
asset will flow to the entity; and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.
SOFTWARE
Software is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortisation
and impairment. Internally developed and packaged software and
the direct costs associated with the development and installation
thereof are capitalised and recognised as intangible assets.
Costs relating to the acquisition of licences are treated as an expense
in the period in which the licence is acquired.
SUBSEQUENT EXPENDITURE
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of
gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding, is
recognised in profit or loss when incurred.
Development expenditure is recognised as an expense, unless it is
probable that it will give rise to a product that will generate future
benefits for the entity, in which case it is capitalised.
Development costs are recognised as assets if, all the following
are demonstrated:
• the technical feasibility of completing the project so that it will
be available for use or sale.
• the entity's intention to complete the project and use or sell it.
• the entity's ability to use or sell the project.
• how the project will generate probable future economic benefits.
• the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the project
• the entity's ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the project during its development.
Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
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AMORTISATION
Amortisation is charged to the statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are systematically tested for impairment at
each reporting date. Other intangible assets are amortised from the
date they are available for use.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods
are as follows:
• Customised software
3 years
• Shelf software
3 years

2.5 Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of inventories is determined using the weighted
average cost method and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring
the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and
condition.
Inventories held by the entity comprise of water, maintenance spares,
consumables and chemicals.

The entity considers evidence of impairment for receivables at both
a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant
receivables are assessed for specific impairment. All individually
significant receivables found not to be specifically impaired are then
collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but
not yet identified. Receivables that are not individually significant
are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together
receivables with similar risk characteristics.
In assessing collective impairment the entity uses historical trends
of the probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of
loss incurred, adjusted for management's judgement as to whether
current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual
losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by
historical trends.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying
amount, and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance
account against receivables. Interest on the impaired asset continues
to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease,
the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

2.6 Impairment
Non-financial assets
Financial assets ( including receivables)
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is
assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered
to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events
have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include:
default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due
to the entity on terms that the entity would not consider otherwise,
indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the
disappearance of an active market for a security.
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The carrying amounts of the entity's non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the assets'
recoverable amount is estimated.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset
or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a risk free discount rate that reflects
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current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets
are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows from continuing use and are largely independent of the
cash flows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating
unit”).
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation if no impairment loss has been recognised.

2.7 Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under
which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and
will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans
are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments
is available.
Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than
12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the service are discounted to their present value.

Other long-term employee benefits
The entity's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits
other than pension plans is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present
value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted.
The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on AA credit-rated
bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
entity's obligations. The calculation is performed using the projected
unit credit method. Any actuarial gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the entity
is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal,
to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the
normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination
benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognised as an expense
if the entity has made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy,
it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of
acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more
than 12 months after the reporting period, then they are discounted
to their present value.

Short-term benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an
undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under
short-term cash bonus if the entity has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

2.8 Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the entity
has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

2.9 Revenue
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the Mhlathuze Water's activities. Revenue is shown, exclusive of
value added tax, rebates and discounts, after eliminating sales.
GOODS SOLD AND SERVICES RENDERED
Revenue from the sale of water is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer. Revenue comprises
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primarily the net invoiced value of water sales, exclusive of valueadded tax, at declared tariffs arising from normal trading activities.
Income from services rendered is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in proportion to the stage of completion of
the transaction at the reporting period.
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Management services is recognised in the period in which the
services are rendered in terms of the agreements with external water
services entities.
IMPLEMENTING AGENCY REVENUE
Implementing agency revenue is recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis
of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total service to
be provided.
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES (O & M)
Operation and maintenance services is recognised in the period in
which the services are rendered. O & M revenue relates to bulk
water and bulk waste water services operated on behalf of water
service authorities.
OPERATING LEASE INCOME
Operating lease income is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in arranging the lease are
recognised as an integral part of total lease income, over the term
of the lease.

2.12 Government grants
Government grants (if any should be received) are recognised initially
as deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and that the entity will comply with the conditions
associated with the grant. Grants that compensate the entity for
expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are recognised.
Grants that compensate the entity for the cost of an asset are
recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life
of the asset.

2.13 Leases
Leases in terms of which the entity assumes substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount
equal to its fair value and if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable
to that asset. If there is no reasonable certainty that the entity will
obtain ownership by the end of the finance lease term, the assets
are fully depreciated over the shorter of the finance lease term and
its estimated useful life.
Other leases are operating leases and are not recognised on the
entity's statement of financial position. Payments made under
operating leases are charged to the statement of comprehensive
income on a straight line basis over the period of the lease. In case
of early termination, penalties are recognised as an expense in the
period in which termination occurred.

2.10 Other operating income
Other operating income is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred to the purchaser and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

2.11 Cost of sales
This represents the cost of raw water purchased from the
Thukela/Goedertrouw/Mhlathuze River System scheme. Other costs
to provide services are reflected in the statement of comprehensive
income under operating, general and administrative expenses.
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Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between
the finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability.
The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.
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Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum
lease payments over the remaining term of the lease when the lease
adjustment is confirmed.

Determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease
At inception of an arrangement, the entity determines whether such
an arrangement is or contains a lease. A specific asset is the subject
of a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use
of that specified asset. An arrangement conveys the right to use the
asset if the arrangement conveys to the entity the right to control
the use of the underlying asset.
At inception or upon reassessment of the arrangement, the entity
separates payments and other considerations required by such an
arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements
on the basis of their relative fair values. If the entity concludes for
a finance lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments
reliably, an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount equal
to the fair value of the underlying asset. Subsequently the liability
is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance
charge on the liability is recognised using the entity's incremental
borrowing rate.

2.14 Finance income and costs
Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest
income is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective
interest method.
Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding
of the discount on provisions and impairment losses recognised on
financial assets. All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
using the effective interest method.

2.15 Segment reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the entity that is
engaged either in providing related products or services (business
segment), which is subject to risks and returns that are different

from those of other segments. Segment information is presented in
respect of the entity's business segments. The business segments
are determined based on the entity's management and internal
reporting structure.
Segment results,that are reported to the entity's Chief Executive (the
chief operating decision maker) include revenue, assets and liabilities
and items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
period to acquire property, plant and equipment.

2.16 Related parties
a) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to
a reporting entity if that person:
(i) has control or joint control of the reporting entity;
(ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting
entity or of a parent of the reporting entity.
b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following
conditions applies:
(i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).
(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the reporting entity or an entity related
to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such
a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the
reporting entity.
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).
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(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent entity).

2.17 Fruitless and wasteful
expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in
vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for as expenditure
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and where recovered, it
is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

2.18 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Public
Finance Management Act (PFMA)] and the Public Office Bearers Act
(Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the entity's supply chain
management policies. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised
expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and where recovered, it
is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
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2.19 New standards and
interpretations not yet adopted
The following new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations applicable to the entity are not yet effective for the
year ended 30 June 2013, and have not been applied in preparing
these annual financial statements:
IFRS 1: First time adoption of IFRS
01 January 2013
AC 144 (IFRS 7): Disclosures- Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
01 January 2013
AC 150 (IFRS 13): Fair Value Measurement
01 January 2013
AC 132 (IAS 27): Separate Financial Statements 01 January 2013
AC 116 (IAS 19): Employee Benefits
01 January 2013
AC 125 (IAS 32): Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities
01 January 2014
AC 146 (IFRS 9): Financial Instruments
01 January 2015
The Board believes that the adoption of these standards in future
periods will have no material impact on the financial statements of
Mhlathuze Water.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2013

Notes

Revenue

2

Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other operating income

2,2

Operating, general and administrative expenses
Staff costs
Energy
Maintenance materials
Chemicals/purification
Depreciation/amortisation
Other operating expenses

2013
R’000

Restated
2012
R’000

314 971

297 518

(37 999)
276 972

(43 443)
254 075

15 450

11 502

(213 171)
(65 587)
(38 787)
(16 042)
(10 089)
(44 579)
(38 087)

(198 428)
(53 002)
(37 495)
(21 270)
(10 386)
(44 310)
(31 965)

Results from operating activities

3

79 251

67 149

Net finance costs
Finance income
Finance cost

4
5

(11 181)
12 939
(24 120)

(15 219)
11 885
(27 104)

68 070
68 070

51 930
51 930

Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2013

2013
R’000

Restated
2012
R’000

Restated
2011
R’000

6
7

494 007
1 093
495 100

503 385
2 279
505 664

527 840
4 144
531 984

8
9
10
11

5 175
88 181
56 798
251 203
401 357

3 392
57 510
20 476
219 766
301 144

4 197
66 668
46 911
177 533
295 309

896 457

806 808

827 293

194 413
207 094
9 768
6 695
3 602
421 572

129 469
205 095
9 214
6 325
3 399
353 502

87 495
196 259
8 669
5 951
3 198
301 572

Notes

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents - Implementing Agent Projects
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Total assets
RESERVES AND LIABILITIES
Reserves
Retained income
Capital replacement reserve
Thukela/Goedertrouw/Mhlathuze River system reserve (TGMR)
Maintenance reserve
Insurance reserve
Total reserves
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Income received in advance
Provisions and liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

12
13
14

189 553
103 141
258
292 952

211 663
111 348
258
323 269

249 568
118 539
258
368 365

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing borrowings
Income received in advance
Provisions and liabilities
Bank overdraft
Total current liabilities

15
12
13
14
11

147 459
22 110
8 272
4 092
181 933

96 261
22 110
8 384
3 276
6
130 037

128 388
17 543
8 392
3 033
157 356

896 457

806 808

827 293

Total reserves and liabilities
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 30 June 2013

TGMR
reserve

Maintenance
reserve

Insurance
reserve

Total

R’000

Capital
replacement
reserve
R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Balance at 1 July 2011

87 495

196 259

8 669

5 951

3 198

301 572

Total comprehensive income for the year

51 930

-

-

-

-

51 930

Transfers to reserves

(9 956)

8 836

545

374

201

-

129 469

205 095

9 214

6 325

3 399

353 502

Transfers to reserves

(3 126)

1 999

554

370

203

-

Total comprehensive income for the year

68 070

-

-

-

-

68 070

194 413

207 094

9 768

6 695

3 602

421 572

Retained
income

Balance as at 30 June 2012

Balance as at 30 June 2013
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 30 June 2013

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Changes in working capital
-finance costs
-finance costs capitalised
Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
- proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
- acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
- adjustment for borrowing costs capitalised
- finance income
Net cash utilised in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
- decrease in interest bearing borrowings
- decrease in income received in advance
Net cash utilised in financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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22,1
22,2
5
5

6&7
5
4

12
13

11

2013
R’000

Restated
2012
R’000

123 830
19 560
(24 120)
(205)
119 065

111 459
(21 922)
(27 104)
(2 575)
59 858

1 386
(35 401)
205
12 939
(20 871)

1 130
(19 119)
2 575
11 885
(3 529)

(22 110)
(8 319)
(30 429)

(33 338)
(7 199)
(40 537)

67 765
240 236
308 001

15 792
224 444
240 236

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2013

1. BUSINESS SEGMENTS
Mhlathuze Water has two reportable segments:
(i) The primary activities segment as defined by section 29 of the Water Services Act No. 108 of 1997 which is made up of:
(a) Bulk water
This activity covers the bulk supplies and other related water services made under contract in the Richards Bay/Empangeni area from plants owned
by Mhlathuze Water. It also covers bulk supplies made and other related water services under contract to district municipalities, Water Services
Institutions and the Department of Water Affairs from plants owned by these bodies. Revenue generated based on water usage has been reflected
under this segment.
(b) Waste water
This activity covers buoyant and dense effluent disposals under contract to industries and municipalities in the Richards Bay area from plants owned
by Mhlathuze Water.
(ii) The other segment activities as defined by section 30 of the Water Services Act No. 108 of 1997. This business segment consists of non- regulated
activities which are mainly defined as services that complement bulk water service provision such as water quality monitoring, environmental
management, laboratory services and where Mhlathuze Water acts as an implementing agent for any sphere of government for projects related water
service delivery.

Section 29
Primary activities
Bulk water
kl’000

For the year ended 2013
Volume sold

44 176
R’000

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other operating income
Operating, general and administrative expenses
Other administrative expenses
Depreciation
Operating income before finance costs
Net finance costs
Surplus for the year
Capital expenditure
Segment assets
Centralised Services
Consolidated total assets
Segment liabilities
Centralised Services
Consolidated total liabilities

Section 30
Other activities

Total

kl’000

kl’000

Waste water
kl’000

64 751

-

108 927

R’000

R’000

R’000

193 304
(37 999)
155 305
10 033
(139 869)
(114 496)
(25 373)
25 469
(6 421)
19 048

102 107
102 107
5 417
(73 302)
(54 096)
(19 206)
34 222
(4 760)
29 462

19 560
19 560
19 560
19 560

314 971
(37 999)
276 972
15 450
(213 171)
(168 592)
(44 579)
79 251
(11 181)
68 070

31 213

4 188

-

35 401

312 366
-

185 124
-

106 672
-

604 162
292 295
896 457

19 205
-

114 367
-

106 672
-

240 244
234 641
474 885
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2013

BUSINESS SEGMENTS ...continued

For the year ended 2012
Volume sold

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other operating income
Operating, general and administrative expenses
Other administrative expenses
Depreciation
Operating income before finance costs
Net finance costs
Surplus for the year
Capital expenditure
Segment assets
Centralised Services
Consolidated total assets
Segment liabilities
Centralised Services
Consolidated total liabilities
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Section 29
Primary activities

Section 30
Other activities

Total

kl’000

kl’000

Bulk water
kl’000

Waste water
kl’000

53 292

65 083

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

191 113
(43 443)
147 670
2 925
(117 333)
(92 850)
(24 483)
33 262
(5 929)
27 333

95 077
95 077
8 577
(81 095)
(61 268)
(19 827)
22 559
(9 290)
13 269

11 328
11 328
11 328
11 328

297 518
(43 443)
254 075
11 502
(198 428)
(154 118)
(44 310)
67 149
(15 219)
51 930

15 282

3 837

-

19 119

315 219
-

198 438
-

37 942
-

551 599
255 208
806 807

29 671
-

125 238
-

37 941
-

192 850
260 456
453 306

-

118 375

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2013

2013
k’l 000

2012
k’l 000

4 264
39 912
64 751
108 927

9 311
43 981
65 083
118 375

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

142 425
64 122

140 949
56 302

38
6 291
13 232
226 108

49
3 686
7 593
208 579

50 878
37 985
88 863

50 164
38 775
88 939

193 303
102 107

191 113
95 077

38
6 291
13 232
314 971

49
3 686
7 593
297 518

VOLUME SOLD
Volume of bulk water - raw
Volume of bulk water - purified
Volume of waste water
Total volume sold

2. REVENUE
Tariff income
An analysis of tariff income is as follows:
Primary activities (Section 29)
- bulk water
- waste water
Other activities (Section 30)
- management services
- laboratory services
- implementing agency fees
Total tariff income
Operating lease income
An analysis of operating lease income is as follows:
Primary activities (Section 29)
- bulk water
- waste water
Total operating lease income
Total revenue
An analysis of total revenue is as follows:
Primary activities (Section 29)
- bulk water
- waste water
Other activities (Section 30)
- management services
- laboratory services
- implementing agency fees
Total revenue
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2. REVENUE ...continued
Mhlathuze Water, apart from its primary activities administers External Projects (Section 30 activities) for the
Department of Water Affairs, Department of Education and the Department of Environmental Affairs on their behalf.
Total expenditure for these projects are fully recovered from these departments. These amounts below are not
reflected in the statement of comprehensive income as it is deemed that Mhlathuze Water is an agent in these
transactions. Accordingly, the implementing agency fees has been recognised as revenue in the statement of
comprehensive income.

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

338 971
159 860
136 005
29 606
13 500

223 969
94 768
109 748
5 760
13 693

9 564
5 886

3 703
6 692
1 107

15 450

11 502

The following project activities took place during the year:
- Department of Education - school sanitation
- Department of Water Affairs - water infrastructure
- Department of Environmental Affairs - Alien plant removal
- Department of Water Affairs - other

The above amounts have been received on behalf of the respective departments and are recoverable from them.
2.2 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Included in other operating income:
- Income from DWA in relation to disputed amounts
- Profit on insurance claim
- Sundry income
Total other operating income

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

3. RESULTS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Results from operating activites is stated after taking the following discloseable items into account:
Included in other operating expenses:
Auditor's remuneration
- external audit fees current year
Internal audit fees
Operating lease charges
Provision for impairment of receivables
Raising of provision for impairment of trade receivables
Release of provision for impairment of trade receivables
Provision for impairment of sundry receivables
Total of provision for impairment of receivables
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(953)
(630)

(850)
(606)

(4 087)

(4 099)

(392)
1 049
(5)
652

(44)
(44)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2013

2013
R’000

3. RESULTS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ... continued
Staff costs:
- Salaries and wages
- Provision for bonus
- defined contribution plan expense
- medical aid contributions
- Executive members and Executive staff members
Total Staff costs

(47 604)
(3 875)
(6 545)
(314)
(7 249)
(65 587)
No.

Number of employees at 30 June
Permanent
Contractors against vacant posts
Contractors other
Trainees
Total number of employees

148
8
4
160

2012
R’000

(39 669)
(2 891)
(4 236)
(545)
(5 661)
(53 002)
No.

133
1
7
2
143

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

- call accounts/investments
- recovery from customers
- bank accounts

12 916
7
16

11 720
154
11

Total finance income

12 939

11 885

Loans
Bank overdraft
Less: borrowing cost capitalised

(24 324)
(1)
205

(29 673)
(6)
2 575

Total finance costs

(24 120)

(27 104)

4. FINANCE INCOME

5. FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs were capitalised to work-in-progress at the average gross weighted cost of debt of 10.68% p.a. (2012: 10.68%)
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for the year ended 30 June 2013

Land

6.

Furniture &
Equipment
R’000

Plant &
Machinery
R’000

Vehicles

R’000

Buildings &
infrastructure
R’000

Leased
Assets
R’000

Total
2013
R’000

1 829
1 829

141 040
233 560

7 405
17 529

340 630
550 746

3 401
5 043

9 080
9 080

33 295

503 385
851 082

-

(92 520)

(10 124)

(210 116)

(1 642)

-

(33 295)

(347 697)

Additions
Borrowing costs capitalised
Commissioning

-

10 325
-

1 990
-

4 767
-

214
-

34 246
205
(17 296)

-

51 542
205
(17 296)

Disposals/asset write-offs
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

-

(118)
(129)
11

(18)
(220)
202

(1 249)
(3 459)
2 210

(9)
9

-

-

(1 385)
(3 817)
2 432

Transfers
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

-

(3 678)
(3 505)
(173)

1 388
1 494
(106)

2 290
2 011
279

-

-

-

-

Depreciation charge

-

(10 004)

(2 217)

(29 504)

(718)

-

-

(42 443)

Total property, plant and equipment
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Impairment losses

1 829
1 829
-

137 565
240 251
(102 686)
-

8 548
20 793
(12 245)
-

316 933
554 065
(236 761)
(371)

2 897
5 247
(2 350)
-

26 235
26 235
-

33 295
(33 295)
-

494 007
881 716
(387 337)
(371)

Total property, plant and equipment

1 829

137 565

8 548

316 933

2 897

26 235

-

494 007

R’000

Capital work
in progress
R’000

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Year ended 30 June 2013
Carrying Amount 1 July 2012
Cost
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses
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Land

6.

Furniture &
Equipment
R’000

Plant &
Machinery
R’000

Vehicles

R’000

Buildings &
infrastructure
R’000

R’000

Capital work
in progress
R’000

Leased
Assets
R’000

Total
2012
R’000

1 829
1 829

124 524
206 393

7 868
16 516

291 244
474 752

1 703
2 870

100 672
100 672

33 295

527 840
836 327

-

(81 869)

(8 648)

(183 508)

(1 167)

-

(33 295)

(308 487)

Additions
Borrowing costs capitalised
Commissioning

-

27 182
-

1 991
-

78 831
-

2 294
-

19 119
(110 711)

-

129 417
(110 711)

Disposals/asset write-offs
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

-

(15)
15

(19)
(247)
228

(1 110)
(2 837)
1 727

(121)
121

-

-

(1 129)
(3 220)
2 091

Transfers
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

-

-

(731)
(731)
-

-

-

-

-

(731)
(731)
-

Depreciation charge

-

(10 666)

(1 704)

(28 335)

(596)

-

-

(41 301)

Total property, plant and equipment
Cost
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses

1 829
1 829

141 040
233 560

7 405
17 529

340 630
550 746

3 401
5 043

9 080
9 080

33 295

503 385
851 082

-

(92 520)

(10 124)

(210 116)

(1 642)

-

(33 295)

(347 697)

Total property, plant and equipment

1 829

141 040

7 405

340 630

3 401

9 080

-

503 385

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Year ended 30 June 2012
Carrying Amount 1 July 2011
Cost
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses
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2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2 279
12 609
(10 330)

4 875
12 206
(7 331)

950

414

-

(10)
10

(2 136)

(3 010)

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

1 093
13 559
(12 466)

2 279
12 609
(10 330)

Total intangible assets

1 093

2 279

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

5 028
3 097
1 931

3 263
2 377
886

147

129

5 175

3 392

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Software
Year ended 30 June 2013
Carrying Amount 1 July 2012
Cost
Accumulated amortisation
Additions
Disposals/asset write-offs
Cost
Accumulated amortisation
Amortisation

8. INVENTORIES
8.1 Stores
Consumables and maintenance spares
Chemicals
8.2 Water inventory
Water inventory consists of closing stock of raw and treated water
Total inventories
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2013
R’000

Restated
2012
R’000

Restated
2011
R’000

33 217
49 874
(397)
3 908
42
1 537
88 181

34 135
17 466
(1 049)
4 498
27
2 433
57 510

31 498
29 681
(1 093)
2 100
24
3 336
1 122
66 668

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

Advances received in respect of Implementing Agent Projects

56 798

20 476

Total cash and cash equivalents - Department of Water Affairs,
Environmental Affairs and Education

56 798

20 476

9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables - bulk and waste water
Trade receivables - project activities
Provision for impairment
Sundry receivables
Staff receivables
South African Revenue Services VAT receivable
Prepayments and deposits
Total trade and other receivables

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - IMPLEMENTING AGENT PROJECTS
Advances received in respect of Implementing Agent Projects
Mhlathuze Water has entered into agreements with the Department of Water Affairs, Department
of Education and Department of Environmental Affairs to administer approved budgets per
annum against which Mhlathuze Water is allowed to incur expenses for bulk water and
sanitation funded projects as well as the Working for Water Programme.
For this purpose the Department of Water Affairs, Department of Education and Department of
Environmental Affairs advances cash amounts to Mhlathuze Water in some instances and reimburses
Mhlathuze Water in other instances as and when costs are incurred on these projects.
On completion, the projects are handed to the District or Local authorities.
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2013
R’000

2012
R’000

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term, highly liquid investments that are held with registered
banking institutions with maturities of six months or less and that are subject to insignificant interest rate risk.
The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair values.
Bank overdrafts and cash equivalents
Bank overdraft
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

251 203
251 203

(6)
219 766
219 760

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, the cash and cash equivalents comprise
the following:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents Departments of Water Affairs, Environmental Affairs and Education
Bank overdrafts
Net cash and cash equivalents

251 203
56 798
308 001

219 766
20 476
(6)
240 236

Financial
institution
R’000

Redeemable
date
R’000

Fixed
interest
Rate %

Balance
30 June 2012
R’000

Redeemed
R’000

Balance
30 June 2013
R’000

Nedbank
RMB

30/06/2020
28/11/2025

10,89
10,54

94 118
139 655

(11 765)
(10 345)

82 353
129 310

Total capital market loans

233 773

(22 110)

211 663

Short-term portion of loans
Long-term portion of loans

22 110
211 663

22 110
189 553

Total loans

233 773

211 663

12. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
Capital market loans
Fixed Term Loan
Fixed Term Loan

All loans are unsecured.
The fixed term loan from Nedbank is repayable in bi-annual capital repayments which commenced 30 June 2012 and maturing on 30 June 2020.
The fixed term loan from Rand Merchant Bank is repayable on bi-annual capital repayments which commenced 30 November 2011 and maturing on
28 November 2025.
The carrying values of interest bearing borrowings approximates the fair values.
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013

83

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2013

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

8 272
103 141
111 413

8 384
111 348
119 732

314
34
(34)
314

314
51
(51)
314

3 220
4 036
(3 220)
4 036

2 977
2 891
(2 648)
3 220

4 350

3 534

56
4 036
4 092
258
4 350

56
3 220
3 276
258
3 534

13. INCOME RECEIVED IN ADVANCE
- Short-term portion of advances
- Long-term portion of advances
Total income received in advance
Income received in advance from Foskor relates to the construction of the B-Line Diffuser Replacement Project,
which was commissioned at the end September 2008.
14. PROVISIONS AND LIABILITIES
Post retirement medical aid liability
This provision is in respect of the one long standing pensioner.
This pensioner was already retired when Mhlathuze Water made the decision
to pre-fund their liability towards medical aid costs when employees retire
For the purpose of calculating the post retirement medical aid liability a discount rate of 9%
(2012: 9%) was applied and a medical inflation rate of 7.5% (2012: 7.5%) was applied.
Balance at beginning of the year
Provided during the year
Utilised during the year
Balance at end of the year
Provision for staff bonus
The provision for bonus is raised to recognise the performance of employees, which
is payable at the Board's discretion in line with the Performance Management Policy.
Balance at beginning of the year
Provided during the year
Utilised during the year
Balance at end of the year
These provisions reflects management best estimate.
Total provisions and liabilities
Short and long term portion of the provision and liabilities
Short term portion of post retirement medical aid
Short term portion of provision for staff bonuses
Short term portion of the provision and liabilities
Long term portion of the provision and liabilities
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2013
R’000

Restated
2012
R’000

Restated
2011
R’000

15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
DEPARTMENT OF WATER AFFAIRS PAYABLE
The payable relates to continued rebates granted by Department of Water Affairs subsequent
to the loan liability in respect of the Thukela Transfer Scheme being redeemed.

-

23 078

9 360

The payable arose as a result of raw water purchases from the Department of Water Affairs in
respect of water use charge, Water resource management and Water research levies.

-

5 198

9 077

Total Department of Water Affairs payable

-

28 276

18 437

Trade payables
Trade payables - Project Activities
Accruals
Retention monies
South African Revenue Services - PAYE, UIF, SDL and VAT
Accrued finance charges
Accruals - Section 30 activities
Sundry creditors
Sundry creditors - Section 30 activities
Section 30 customer advances (refer to note 16)
Total

15 409
44 094
22 518
283
1 406
1 172
5 144
635
56 798
147 459

8 246
8 869
16 566
2 430
1 594
1 210
8 594
20 476
67 985

10 303
4 877
17 770
8 952
614
1 300
5 636
68
24 689
35 742
109 951

Total trade and other payables

147 459

96 261

128 388
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2013
R’000

2012
R’000

9 172

13 907

39 555

6 333

8 071

236

56 798

20 476

Pension and Provident fund housing loan guarantees

1 674

1 014

Total contingent liabilities

1 674

1 014

16. ADVANCES - PROJECTS ACTIVITIES
The Department of Water Affairs, Department of Education and Department
of Environmental Affairs approves a budget per annum against which Mhlathuze Water is
allowed to incur expenses for the externally funded projects as well as the Working for Water
Programme. For this purpose the Department of Water Affairs, Department of Education and
Department of Environmental Affairs advances cash amounts to Mhlathuze Water and reimburse
them as and when cash is expended on these projects. These projects are completed on
behalf of the Department of Water Affairs, Department of Education and
Department of Environmental Affairs. The unutilised advances are listed below:Advances received from the Department of Water Affairs
Nine Projects are currently being managed.
Advances received from the Department of Educ/Dept of Basic Education (DOE/DBE)
Four Projects are currently being managed.
Advances received from the Department of Environmental Affairs (DEA)
Twenty five Projects are currently being managed.
Funds on hand (included in cash balances and trde and other payables - refer note 10 and 15)

17. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Collateral security has been given to certain financial institutions in respect of mortgage
loans advanced to employees under the home ownership scheme.
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2013
R’000

2012
R’000

18. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
- contracted and authorised
- authorised but not contracted
Total future capital commitments

54 945
55 045
109 990

15 030
58 933
73 963

3 697
9 945
14 808
28 450

3 866
11 122
16 874
31 862

86 062
409 631
2 615 057
3 110 750

106 912
547 195
3 187 289
3 841 396

These capital commitments will be financed from borrowings and internal resources.
19. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
19.1 Operating lease commitments
At the statement of financial position date Mhlathuze Water had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases, which fall due as follows:
Up to 1 year
1 to 5 years
Thereafter
Total operating lease commitments
Mhlathuze Water leases equipment and a pipeline from various institutions for periods of 1 to 20 years.
19.2 Operating lease receivable
Up to 1 year
1 to 5 years
Thereafter
Total operating lease receivable
Arrangements with the customers that contained deemed leases and qualify as operating leases are recognised
in terms of AC117. The above indicates the future lease rentals receivables.
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2013
R’000

2012
R’000

-

237
(237)
-

39
(1 049)
(1 010)

25
(69)
(44)

20. STATUTORY INFORMATION IN TERMS OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT 1999
Material losses - Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Opening balance 1 July 2012
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relating to current year
Less: amounts condoned by appropriate authority
Totals
Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure (2012)
Incident: - The Commissioning of the Nsezi Water Treatment Plant Upgrade
Cause: - Event cancelled very late as Deputy Minister of Water Affairs could not attend
Cancellation of orders and preparations made by suppliers
Condoned by (condoning authority):- Chief Executive and Chairperson of the Board
Losses recovered or written off
Bad debts written off
Bad debts recovered (reversal for provision)
Totals
Financial assistance from the State
None
21. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Mhlathuze Water has made provision for pension and provident schemes covering all employees substantially. The funds are governed by the Pension
Funds Act, 1956 (Act No. 24 of 1956).
Mhlathuze Water pension fund - defined contribution plan
Retirement benefits are determined based on contributions made into the fund - 13% (2012: 9%) of employees contribute towards this fund. Mhlathuze
Water has no commitment to meet unfunded benefits of the pension fund.
Mhlathuze Water provident fund - defined contribution plan
The provident fund is in the nature of a defined contribution plan and is registered as an insured scheme. Retirement benefits are determined with reference
to the contributions to the fund - 87% (2012: 91%) of employees contribute to the provident fund. Mhlathuze Water has no commitment
to meet unfunded benefits of the provident fund.
Monthly company contributions are paid within 7 days after deduction from the employees.
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2013
R’000

2012
R’000

68 070

51 930

6,7
4
4

44 579
24 120
(12 939)
123 830

44 310
27 104
(11 885)
111 459

7
8
15
14

(1 783)
(30 671)
51 198
816
19 560

805
9 158
(32 128)
243
(21 922)

Notes

22. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
22.1 Cash generated from operations
Total comprehensive income for the year
Adjusted for:
- depreciation/amortisation
- finance costs
- finance income

22.2 Changes in working capital
- (increase) decrease in inventories
- (increase) decrease in trade and other receivables (2012 restated)
- increase (decrease) in trade and other payables (2012 restated)
- increase in provisions and liabilities
Net changes in working capital
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Revenue

Expenditure

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

12 643
45 820
88 279
171
-

12 016
44 032
84 935
-

47 737
12 643
763
26 661
228
79

43 110
408
359
80

146 913
-

56 048
-

88 111
9 143

43 957
7 329

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related party relationship exist between the organisation, associated organisations,
key management personnel, board members and all spheres of government organisations.
The nature and value of transactions concluded during the year and balances at year end
are detailed below.

Organisation
Department of Water Affairs
Department of Water Affairs
Foskor Limited
City of uMhlathuze
City of uMhlathuze
City of uMhlathuze
South African Association of Water Utilities
Umgeni Water

Nature of transaction
Levies
TG Scheme
Effluent disposal & income in advances
Electricity
Water & Effluent
Lab/Sundry
Members fees
Water analysis

Related party transactions - organisations
Related party transactions - key management personnel
(see remuneration report)
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Amounts owing by:

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS ...continued

Water services TG Scheme
External /Implementing
Laboratory services
Levies
Effluent/Laboratory/Advances
Laboratory services/Sundry
Water & Effluent

Department of Water Affairs
Department of Water Affairs
Department of Water Affairs
Department of Water Affairs
Foskor Limited
City of uMhlathuze
City of uMhlathuze
Related party transactions - organisations

Amounts owing to:

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

1 899
51 771
55
3 572
39
8 426

5 616
12 790
3 285
-

9 172
880
2 324

28 276
13 907
-

65 762

21 691

3 204

28 276

Certain members of the Board of Mhlathuze Water hold positions with entities having a relationship with Mhlathuze Water. The relationship between
the Board Member and the entity concerned and the nature of the transactions involved with such entity are listed below.
Board Member

Entity

Position held

Services rendered or received

D. C. Myeni

South African Association of Water Utilities
African Water Association
South African Airways

Chairperson
Vice Chairperson
Board member

Water services
Water services
Transportation services

N. Gevers

Umgeni Water

General Manager Finance

Bulk water and waste water services

M. M. Xulu

Foskor Limited

General Manager - Marketing
and Sales

Bulk effluent disposal

F.G Bosman

City of Mhlathuze
uThungulu District Municipality

Councillor
Councillor

Municipal water and waste water services
Water Services and waste water disposal

The Remuneration report reflects Board members and senior management remuneration earned in their capacity as Mhlathuze Water representatives.
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial risk management
The entity has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments
- credit risk
- liquidity risk
- market risk
This note presents information about Mhlathuze Water's exposure to each of the above risks, objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing
risk. The methods used to measure risk have been consistently applied in the years presented, unless otherwise stated. Further quantitative disclosures
are included throughout the annual financial statements.
The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the entity's risk management framework. Risk management policies are
established to identify and analyse the risks that are faced by Mhlathuze Water, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to these limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the entity's activities.
Presently all risks identified are attended to at departmental level and by a risk management committee. Reports are presented to the Audit and Risk
Committee, the Board’s delegated structure tasked with the responsibility of reviewing the risk management process.
The Board reviews its enterprise wide risk profile to ensure that critical risks are addressed adequately and to identify and capitalise on opportunities
that may be created from these risks. This provides the Board with the opportunity to re-assess the entity's strengths and weaknesses to determine a
strategic alignment to the objectives.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to Mhlathuze Water if a customer or a counter party to the financial instrument fails to meet it's contractual
obligations. Potential areas of credit risk are cash and cash equivalents, investments, trade receivables and other receivables.
Mhlathuze Water limits its exposure in relation to cash balances and investments by only dealing with well established financial institutions of high quality
credit rating approved by Department of Water Affairs and National Treasury.
Trade and other receivables
The entity's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The Board has established a credit policy
under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the entity's facilities are offered.
Consideration is given to the external credit ratings, tax clearance certificates and the latest audited annual financial statements of entities not listed on
the Johannesburg Stock Exchange.
Credit limits are established for non-contractual customers and these limits are reviewed bi-annually.
The average credit period allowed is 30 days from invoice date. Interest is charged at prime rate +2.5% p.a. on overdue debt.
Mhlathuze Water reviews outstanding balances on trade and other receivables on a monthly basis, via a debtors age analysis report.
A provision is raised in full for long overdue accounts. The provisions raised are tabled together with the annual financial statements to the Audit and
Risk Committee and the Board.
Partnership/Water schemes with external parties
External parties are required to submit guarantees to Mhlathuze Water for all expenses incurred on their behalf. Any amounts outstanding after
a period of 30 days will attract interest at the current interest rate as announced by the Minister of Finance.
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2013
R’000

Restated
2012
R’000

Restated
2011
R’000

88 181
308 001
396 182

57 510
240 242
297 752

66 668
224 444
291 112

19 259
8 843
1 899
58 180
88 181

23 771
8 180
5 661
19 898
57 510

21 471
7 996
3 063
34 138
66 668

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets that represent the maximum credit exposure at
reporting date.
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables
per business segment at reporting date was:
Water supply
Effluent disposal
Thukela Transfer Scheme
Project activities

The most significant customer is Mondi Business Paper - Richards Bay. This customer accounts for approximately 47.06% of the trade receivables balance.
Provision for impairment
The ageing of trade receivables and other receivables at the reporting date was:

Not past due
Past due 0-30 days
Past due 30-60 days
Past due 60-90 days
Past due >90 days

Restated

Restated

Gross
2013
R’000

Impairment
2013
R’000

Gross
2012
R’000

Impairment
2012
R’000

Gross
2011
R’000

Impairment
2011
R’000

59 782
17 875
7 562
1 453
369
87 041

(397)
(397)

40 504
15 091
85
113
334
56 127

(1 049)
(1 049)

63 357
1 538
1 085
27
632
66 639

(1 093)
(1 093)

The movement in the provision for impairment in respect of trade receivables and other receivables:
Balance at 1 July
Movement
Balance at 30 June

2013
R’000

2012
R’000

2011
R’000

1 049
(652)
397

1 093
(44)
1 049

2 735
(1 642)
1 093

In assessing the provision for impairment, Mhlathuze Water considered the likelihood of receiving payments from its debtors irrespective of the length
of time the debt was outstanding.
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24. Financial Instruments (continued)
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that Mhlathuze Water will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Mhlathuze Water is a
self-funding entity and does not receive funding in the form of government subsidies. All funding of income generating and operational
assets are obtained by way of loan agreements.
The entity's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the reputation of Mhlathuze Water by managing
the monthly cash flow throughout the year.
Mhlathuze Water operates a consolidated loan pool and utilises the positive inflows created by the system of depreciation to redeem external borrowings.
Finance charges are recovered via tariffs levied against consumers. For the purpose of treasury management all long term loans relating to the core
business activities are pooled and an average rate of interest calculated and applied to the schemes for tariff purposes. This achieves better control and
ensures a fair and flexible recovery of finance charges, which assist in planning the cash flow requirements.

Bank Short-term funding
Mhlathuze Water's main credit facility is with ABSA Bank and include the following:
Type of Facility
- Overdraft facility
- ACB Credit facility
- Credit Card facility
- Travel Lodge Card

Amounts (Rands)
20 000 000 (fixed overdraft of 6 000 000 and 5 days daylight limit of 14 000 000 only over month end)
400 000
130 000
100 000

Mhlathuze Water also has a National Treasury approved borrowing limit of R232.8 million to ensure business continuity.
Foreign Currency Borrowings
Any loan agreements entered into with foreign financial institutions must be approved by the Board and National Treasury.
Foreign currency forward rate agreements must be used to hedge all foreign currency borrowings.
Foreign currency forward rate agreements must be used to hedge all foreign material imported where not covered by contractors.
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Weighted
average rate
(%)

Carrying
amount
R’000

Contractual
amount
R’000

<1 year

2 - 5 years

> 5 years

R’000

R’000

R’000

Year ended 30 June 2013
- interest-bearing borrowings
- trade and other payables
Total

10,68
-

(211 663)
(147 459)
(359 122)

(333 988)
(147 459)
(481 447)

(44 060)
(147 459)
(191 519)

(152 872)
(152 872)

(137 056)
(137 056)

Year ended 30 June 2012 - Restated
- interest-bearing borrowings
- trade and other payables
Total

10,68
-

(233 773)
(96 261)
(330 034)

(380 452)
(96 261)
(476 713)

(46 465)
(96 261)
(142 726)

(162 275)
(162 275)

(171 712)
(171 712)

Year ended 30 June 2011 - Restated
- interest-bearing borrowings
- trade and other payables
Total

11,56
-

(267 111)
(128 388)
(395 499)

(451 300)
(128 388)
(579 688)

(46 300)
(128 388)
(174 688)

(185 757)
(185 757)

(219 243)
(219 243)

Exposure to Liquidity risk
Financial Liabilities

Loans and
receivables

Cash and
bank balances

Other financial
liabilities and
liabilities at
amortised cost
R’000

Total

R’000

R’000

88 181
-

56 798
251 203

-

88 181
56 798
251 203

88 181

308 001

(211 663)
(147 459)
(359 122)

(211 663)
(147 459)
37 060

R’000

Fair values
The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities are presented by class in
the tables below, and approximate to the fair values.
30 June 2013
Financial Assets
Trade and other receivables
Bank and cash Implementing Agent Projects
Bank and cash
Financial Liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowing
Trade and other payables
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Loans and
receivables

Cash and
bank balances

Other financial
liabilities and
liabilities at
amortised cost
R’000

Total

R’000

R’000

57 510
-

20 476
219 766

-

57 510
20 476
219 766

57 510

240 242

(233 773)
(96 261)
(330 034)

(233 773)
(96 261)
(32 282)

66 668
-

46 911
177 533

-

66 668
46 911
177 533

66 668

224 444

(267 111)
(128 388)
(395 499)

(267 111)
(128 388)
(104 387)

R’000

24. Financial Instruments (continued)
30 June 2012- Restated
Financial Assets
Trade and other receivables
Bank and cash Implementing Agent Projects
Bank and cash
Financial Liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowing
Trade and other payables

30 June 2011- Restated
Financial Assets
Trade and other receivables
Bank and cash Implementing Agent Projects
Bank and cash
Financial Liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowing
Trade and other payables

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risks comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. The objective is to manage and control market risk
within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk. The entity does not have any exposure to currency risk (that is fluctuation
in foreign exchange currency) or any equity price risk and Mhlathuze Water does not hold any equity investments.
Foreign exchange transaction exposure
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the entity will suffer a decrease in stakeholder wealth due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.
Due to the current nature of Mhlathuze Water's business, it is unlikely to hold assets exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations.
Mhlathuze Water's foreign exchange risk exposure is therefore limited.
Should Mhlathuze Water enter into foreign transactions, it is the responsibility of the Chief Financial Officer to obtain a fixed Rand price.
If this is not possible, all foreign exchange risk exposure will be covered by forward exchange contracts.
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2013
R’000

Restated
2012
R’000

Restated
2011
R’000

88 181
116 849
191 152

57 510
45 775
194 466

66 668
87 068
137 376

(211 663)
184 159

(233 773)
63 978

291 112

Interest rate risk
Mhlathuze Water adopted a policy of limiting exposure to interest rate fluctuations by arranging
borrowings on a fixed rate basis. Cash and short term investments are invested at variable and
fixed interest rates with registered banking institutions. At the reporting date the interest rate
profile for Mhlathuze Water’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:
Fixed rate instruments
Carrying amount
Financial Assets
Trade and other receivables - variable interest rate
Bank and cash
- variable interest rate
Bank and cash
- fixed interest rate
Financial Liabilities
Interest bearing borrowing - fixed interest rate

Mhlathuze Water account for fixed and variable interst rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through the profit and loss, and the entity does
not designate derivatives as hedging instruments under a fair value hedge accounting model.
Notes in the Annual Financial Statements relating to Financial Instruments already disclosed:
Finance Income and Expenses - Note 4 & 5
Trade and other receivables - Note 9
Cash and cash equivalents - Note 10 & 11
25. TAXATION
Mhlathuze Water is exempt from taxation in terms of section 10(1)(t) (ix) read with the definition of Water Services Provider in Section 1 of the
Income Tax Act (Act No. 58 of 1962).
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Restated
2012
R’000

Restated
2011
R’000

26. Restatement of trade and other receivables and trade and other payables
to include project activities
Mhlathuze Water in its capacity as implementing agent for Rural Development Projects on behalf of Department
of Water Affairs, Department of Education and Department of Environmental Affairs incurs costs and recovers
amounts arising from project activities. In the past these amounts payable and receivable were not recognised on
the statement of financial position. There is no effect on the statement of comprehensive income for these
transactions as Mhlathuze Water had correctly recognised the implementing agency fees due in performing these
activities.
Comparative information has been restated to recognise these balance on the statement of financial position
as follows:
Trade and other receivables
Restated
As previously reported
Increase in trade and other receivables

57 510
(40 045)
17 465

66 668
(36 987)
29 681

Trade and other payables
Restated
As previously reported
Increase in other payables

(96 261)
78 796
(17 465)

(128 388)
98 707
(29 681)

27. Capital Replacement reserve
This non-distributable reserve was created to fund upgrades and refurbishments of replacement of the ageing
infrastructure and plant modernisation. In accordance with SA GAAP, transfers to the reserve are made from retained income
in the statements of changes in equity, and not via the statement of comprehensive income.
The balance of the Capital Replacement reserve at 30 June 2013 was R207,1 million.
28. TGMR reserve
This non-distributable reserve was created for emergencies that may arise on the Thukela/Goedertrouw/Mhlathuze River Scheme.
The balance of the Thukela/Goedertrouw/Mhlathuze River Scheme reserve at 30 June 2013 was R9,8 million.
In accordance with SA GAAP, transfers to the reserve are made from retained income in the statements of changes in equity, and
not via the statement of comprehensive income.
29. Maintenance reserve
This non-distributable reserve was created to fund future significant unexpected maintenance costs.
The balance of the maintenance reserve at 30 June 2013 was R6,7 million.
In accordance with SA GAAP, transfers to the reserve are made from retained income in the statements of changes in equity, and
not via the statement of comprehensive income.
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30. Insurance reserve
This non-distributable reserve was created to fund large deductibles for insurance claims.
The balance of the insurance reserve at 30 June 2013 was R3,6 million.
In accordance with SA GAAP, transfers to the reserve are made from retained income in the statements of changes in equity, and not via the statement
of comprehensive income.
31. Value added statement
Value-added is the measure of wealth the organisation has created in its operations. The statement below summarises the total wealth created and shows
how it was distributed to employees and other stakeholders who contributed to its creation.

2013
R’000

Restated
2012
R’000

2

314 971
(37 999)
(103 005)
173 967
15 450
189 417

297 518
(43 443)
(101 116)
152 959
11 502
164 461

3

(65 587)

(53 002)

4/5

(11 181)

(15 219)

(44 579)

(44 310)

Surplus retained

(68 070)

(51 930)

Total value added

(189 417)

(164 461)

Notes

Revenue
To the government
To suppliers of material and services
Other operating income
Total value added
Applied as follows:
To remunerate employees
Salaries, wages, pensions and other benefits
From financial institutions
Net interest (received from)/paid to financial institutions
To replace assets
Depreciation/amortisation
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